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LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY
(Hong Kong Law)
Chungs Lawyers in association with DeHeng Law Offices

REGISTERED OFFICE

P. 0. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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San Po Kong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE, HEADQUARTER AND

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE “PRC")
5/F., Block Two

No. 27 Huailin Road

Huaide Village, Humen Town

Dongguan City, the PRC

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited

83 Des Voeux Road, Central
Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
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Hong Kong

BNP Paribas

63rd Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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Hong Kong
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China CITIC Bank International Limited
80th Floor, International Commerce Centre
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon

Hong Kong

HSBC

Commercial Banking

Level 10, HSBC Main Building
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United Overseas Bank Limited
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www.speedy-global.com
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”)
of Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group” or “Speedy Global”)
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

On 6 December 2018, the Company and Splendid Gains Holdings
Limited (“Splendid Gains Holdings") entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire, and Splendid Gains Holdings conditionally agreed to sell the
shares, representing 100% of the issued share capital of Splendid
Gains International Limited (“Splendid Gains”) for a cash consideration
of HK$180,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition has been
completed on 1 April 2019. Upon completion of the Acquisition,
Splendid Gains and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Splendid Gains Group”) become the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company. Splendid Gains Group is principally engaged in
the business of manufacturing and trading of sweater knitwear
products. Further details of the Acquisition were disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 6 December 2018, 1 April 2019 and
6 September 2019 and the Company’s circular dated 5 March 2019.

For the year 2019 under review, the Group’'s revenue increased
to approximately HK$1,117.0 million, representing an increase
of approximately 30.1% in comparison to that of the year 2018,
while profit for the year attributable to equity holders increased
to approximately HK$26.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 19.8% as compared to that of the year 2018.

Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business

The apparel supply chain servicing business which offers a wide
range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear
products to a number of owners or agents of global reputable brands
(the "Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business”) continued to be the
core business of the Group. For the year 2019, revenue under Apparel
Supply Chain Servicing Business was approximately HK$1,117.0 million
(2018: HK$858.3 million) and segment profit (before other gains/losses
— net, finance costs — net and income tax expense) attributable to
Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business was approximately HK$43.2
million (2018: HK$37.7 million). Being in line with our strategy to focus
on our strengths in product design and development, as well as
quality control and production management, we design, develop and
produce men’s and women's woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear
and sweater knitwear products to respond to constantly evolving
consumer preferences. The increase in the revenue was because
current year's amount included revenue of approximately HK$366.2
million (2018: Nil) contributed by the Splendid Gains Group. Excluding
the above-mentioned revenue, the Group's revenue for the year
2019 under the Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business decreased
by 12.5% mainly due to decrease in customers’ demand. During the
year 2019, less orders to us were placed due to the keen competitive
environment for the apparel supply chain market for the woven wear
and cut-and-sewn knitwear products.
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Apparel Retail Business

The Group also principally engaged in the apparel retail business
operating under the in-house brand of Unisex and under the
distribution right of Promod brand in the PRC (the “Apparel Retail
Business”) while their operations ceased by the end of May 2015.
Therefore, there was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from
our Apparel Retail Business during the year 2019.

Property Investment and Development Business

The Group also engaged in the property development and investment
(the “Property Investment and Development Business”). There
was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from our Property
Investment and Development Business during the year 2019 as the
subsidiaries which were engaged in the property development and
investment for the land at Xinmi City were fully disposed of in 2016.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, we expect the business environment of our Apparel
Supply Chain Servicing Business is very difficult and challenging
in the year 2020 due to keen competition, especially the global
economy is still very unstable due to the trade war between the
PRC and the United States of America and the worldwide outbreak
of the Coronavirus Disease 2019. In order to explore for more new
opportunities with the existing and potential customers, the Group
will enhance product innovation and creativity continuously. For
production management, the Group will continue to enhance the
operating efficiency by simplifying the production processes which
results in a shorter product delivery time. In addition, the Group will
work closely with our customers to consolidate the fabrication in order
to obtain better material prices with mass volume which will enhance
our cost competitiveness. Moreover, we will try to simplify the Group's
organisation structure with each operating process in order to save
Costs.

We keep looking for other retail business opportunity with a better
profitability for the Group’s Apparel Retail Business.
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We are still closely monitoring the property market to determine the
appropriate investment strategy for the Group’s Property Investment
and Development Business. We will seek any appropriate property
investment and development project if we believe that it can magnify
the Group's shareholders’ return.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincere gratitude to all fellow directors, management and our staff
for their unwavering dedication and contribution to our Group's
development. | would also like to thank all of our shareholders, for
their trust and continuous support over a challenging year 2019.

Speedy Global Holdings Limited
Huang Chih Shen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020

¥y * ANNUAL REPORT 2019 07



R 15 18 2
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE+T-A=1t—HLFE
For the year ended
31 December

—E-hF —E—N\F
2019 2018
BHEBR BEBT
Results HK$ million HK$ million
& Revenue 1,117.0 858.3 30.1
E7 Gross profit 144.9 97.1 49.2
B P15 B4 A% 7 Profit before income tax 33.8 28.0 20.7
RABIERIFEAA Profit for the year attributable to
FEAEF s 7 equity holders of the Company 26.6 22.2 19.8
FRNARQREZREFA A Basic and diluted earnings per share
RN TRERR for profit attributable to equity
e R holders of the Company for the year
(AEFRBTIIR) (expressed in HK$ per share) 0.0444 0.0370
R+t=—BA=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\EFE
2019 2018
BESBR E-Yew
Financial Position HK$ million HK$ million
mBEEFE Net current assets 99.5 277.7 -64.2
BEBE Total assets 700.3 6112 14.6
BE Borrowings 91.5 88.3 3.6
afEesE Total liabilities 387.7 318.6 21.7
RABERFEFA Equity attributable to equity holders of
FElG = the Company 312.6 292.5 6.9
R+t=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Financial Statistics 2019 2018
BN L R Current ratio’ 1.3 1.9
& FE B 5 Return on assets? 4.1% 3.4%
N EEE Return on equity? 8.8% 7.8%
BEE Gearing ratio? TEA n/a TiEA n/a
FERERE(R)° Inventory turnover days (days)® 33 60
FEWARRAE RS (H)8 Trade receivable turnover days (days)¢ 43 47
ERERERREMNER Trade and bills payable turnover days (days)’
AEBE(R) 77 107
1. MBLERERRDEERRDAR 1. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

2. AEMBEERNARTEDZHEAREFREMNE 2
FHEELFE  BRIA100%

3. BABFAERARAEEFAABRGEFERENE 3.
PR AR - FIRIA100%

4. AEEBHLXBAEREELEREERERRER 4
R SEYREREE  BRIA100%

5. FEAEHEEENFRNFOTEEERRHERAS 5.

Return on assets = profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company/average total assets x 100%

Return on equity = profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company/average total equity x 100%

Gearing ratio = total borrowings and lease liabilities net of cash and cash
equivalents/total equity x 100%

Inventory turnover days = average inventory balance/cost of sales for the year x

BRAZFREGTE number of days for the year
6. FEUBR SR B 88 B B S G A T 9 AR R BR 6. Trade receivable turnover days = average trade receivable/revenue for the year x
BRAZFRETE number of days for the year

7. BNEREENREASAEMSNEFRATHENS 7.
RRARENREREERAS BRUAZFRUE
08

Trade and bills payable turnover days = average trade and bills payable/cost of
sales for the year x number of days for the year

AFEIRIRIEILER AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BZ+-A=1+—-RHILEE
Year ended 31 December

FBT ZE-N\FE ZE—+F ZT—RF
in HK$'000 2018 2017 2016
E RESULTS
W Revenue 1,117,035 858,343 1,178,540 1,088,201 1,223,831
EH Gross profit 144,858 97,141 129,917 114,036 134,899
BEKLERE  Profit before income tax from

KRETSHATEF  the continuing operations 33,810 28,001 47,064 40,559 37,464
FTERiFY Income tax expense (7,161) (5,779) (12,958) (8,830) (10,405)
BEGEERE  Profit for the year from the

FREF continuing operations 26,649 22,222 34,106 31,729 27,059
BRIHEEER  Loss for the year from

MFERNEE discontinued operations - - = (1,696) (2,229)
F RN F Profit for the year 26,649 22,222 34,106 30,033 24,830

FET
in HK$'000

R+=—HB=+—H

At 31 December
—E-N\F E—+tF TR
2018 2017 PAONI

EERAEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

BERE Total assets 700,330 611,178 708,038 633,404 942,435
ERETCE Total liabilities 387,702 318,641 433,980 397,670 738,507
EEFE Net assets 312,628 292,537 274,058 235,734 203,928

3R o ANNUALREPORT2019 (09
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group focuses on providing one stop solution to our customers
by the provision of apparel supply chain services including product
design and development, fashion trend ascertaining and sampling,
raw material sourcing, production order and merchandise sourcing
management, quality control, packaging, inventory management and
logistics management.

Furthermore, the Group also engaged in the Apparel Retail Business.
Due to the unsatisfactory sales performance of the Unisex and
Promod brands, their operations ceased by the end of May 2015 and
the subsidiaries involved in the Apparel Retail Business were fully
disposed of by the end of February 2017. The Group is still closely
monitoring the apparel retail market to determine the appropriate
investment strategy for the Group's Apparel Retail Business.

The Group also engaged in the Property Investment and Development
Business to develop the relevant market. The subsidiaries involved
in the Property Investment and Development Business were fully
disposed of in early September 2016. The Group is still closely
monitoring the property market to determine the appropriate
investment strategy for the Group’s Property Investment and
Development Business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

BE+t-A=1t—HLFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hfF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BEAR BEAER
HK$ million HK$ million
Wz Revenue 1,117.0 858.3
— R ERRIRE RS — Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business 1,117.0 858.3
—REFEXE — Apparel Retail Business = =
—WERERFREEH — Property Investment and Development
Business - -
EF Gross profit 144.9 97.1
— R ERRRTE R TS - Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business 144.9 97.1
—REZTELK — Apparel Retail Business = =
—WRERERFREREH — Property Investment and Development
BuUSsiness = =
RABIERFERFA Profit for the year attributable to equity holders
FEAG F R T of the Company 26.6 222

10 MFRIRIKIEARBR A F] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



SI1EEsVam M DT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business

Being in line with our strategy to focus on our strengths in product
design and development, as well as quality control and production
management, we design, develop and produce men’s and women'’s
woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater knitwear products
to respond to constantly evolving consumer preferences. Due to
the Acquisition, revenue under the Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business increased by 30.1% to approximately HK$1,117.0 million
during the year 2019 (2018: HK$858.3 million).

Gross profit and gross profit margin under our Apparel Supply Chain
Servicing Business increased by 49.2% to approximately HK$144.9
million (2018: HK$97.1 million) and increased to approximately 13.0%
(2018: 11.3%) respectively, mainly due to the Acquisition. Upon
completion of the Acquisition, the Group’s overall product mix is
changed which increased the average gross profit margin.

During the year 2019, we recorded a segmental profit before
other gains — net, finance costs — net and income tax expense of
approximately HK$43.2 million (2018: HK$37.7 million).

Apparel Retail Business

There was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from our Apparel
Retail Business during the year 2019 as the subsidiaries which were
engaged in the Apparel Retail Business were fully disposed of in 2017.

Property Investment and Development Business

There was neither revenue, gross profit nor expenses from our
Property Investment and Development Business during the year 2019
as the subsidiaries which were engaged in the property development
and investment for the land at Xinmi City were fully disposed of in
2016.

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs mainly represented employee benefit expenses for
salesmen, commission expenses and freight charges related to sales
of goods incurred during the year 2019. Distribution costs increased
mainly due to the Acquisition which Splendid Gains Group incurred
distribution costs of approximately HK$8.5 million during the year
2019.

43§ » ANNUAL REPORT 2019 11
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly represented employee benefit
expenses for our management, finance and administrative personnel,
entertainment expenses, depreciation, travelling expenses and
allowance for doubtful debts. Administrative expenses increased
mainly due to the Acquisition which Splendid Gains Group incurred
general administrative expenses of approximately HK$32.2 million.

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET

Other gains — net of approximately HK$0.2 million during the year
2019 mainly represented claims from customer for order cancellation
of approximately HK$0.9 million, partially offset by the net losses on
disposal of the property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$0.6
million. Other losses — net of approximately HK$1.0 million during
the year 2018 mainly represented the net foreign exchange losses of
approximately HK$1.1 million.

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
Finance income decreased by 40.0% to approximately HK$1.2 million
for the year of 2019 (2018: HK$2.0 million) because less deposits were
placed in the banks during the year 2019.

There was no material fluctuation for the overall finance costs (2019:
HK$10.7 million; 2018: HK$10.7 million). Finance costs for the year
2019 mainly represented interest expense on bank borrowings of
approximately HK$9.3 million, interest and finance charges of lease
liabilities of approximately HK$1.1 million and net exchange losses
of approximately HK$0.3 million while finance costs for the year
2018 mainly represented interest expenses on bank borrowings
of approximately HK$6.2 million and net exchange losses of
approximately HK$4.4 million. Increase in the interest expense on
bank borrowings was because more bank borrowings were utilised
and average interest rate increased during the year 2019.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense mainly represented amounts of current income
tax paid or payable at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. Income tax
expense increased by 24.1% to approximately HK$7.2 million (2018:
HK$5.8 million) primarily as more taxable profits were generated by
the Group during the year 2019.
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GOODWILL

Due to the Acquisition, a goodwill of approximately HK$134.0 million
was recognised based on the difference between the purchase
consideration and the fair values of the total identifiable net assets of
Splendid Gains Group at the date of the acquisition on 1 April 2019.

INVENTORIES

Inventories balance decreased from approximately HK$101.4 million
as at 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$71.9 million as at
31 December 2019 due to faster delivery to customers for the year
2019 which resulted in a decrease in the inventory turnover days
(2019: 33 days; 2018: 60 days).

TRADE RECEIVABLE

Trade receivable increased (31 December 2019: HK$176.9 million;,
31 December 2018: HK$89.2 million) because more sales were noted
before the current year end.

We generally grant customers of our Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business a credit period of 30 to 90 days and they are generally
required to settle their trade balances with us by bank transfer or by
cheque.

Our trade receivable turnover days for the year 2019 were 43 days
(2018: 47 days) which is in general within the credit period granted by
us to the customers.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLE

Trade and bills payable increased (31 December 2019: HK$216.5
million; 31 December 2018: HK$196.2 million) because more purchases
were made before the current year end.

We generally enjoy a credit term of up to 90 days to settle payment.
Our trade and bills payable turnover days for the year 2019 were 77
days (2018: 107 days). Decrease in turnover days was because faster
settlements to the suppliers were noted during the year 2019.
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BORROWINGS

The Group had bank borrowings as at 31 December 2019 in the sum of
approximately HK$91.6 million which are denominated in HK$. All bank
borrowings were made from banks in Hong Kong at floating interest
rates. As at 31 December 2019, all bank borrowings were repayable
within one year or repayable on demand. No financial instruments
were used for hedging purposes, nor were there any foreign currency
net investments hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging
instruments.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year 2019, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital financed by both internal resources and
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$169.8 million, of which approximately
HK$68.7 million denominated in HK$, HK$60.7 million in Renminbi,
HK$39.9 million in United States dollar and HK$0.5 million in other
currencies. As at 31 December 2019, the current ratio of the Group
was 1.3 (31 December 2018: 1.9). The Group was in a strong net cash
position as at 31 December 2019. The Group has sufficient and readily
available finance resources for general working capital requirement
and foreseeable capital expenditure.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers.
To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group's
liquidity position to ensure that sufficient financial resources are
available in order to meet its funding requirements and commitment
timely.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. For group companies with
Renminbi as their functional currency, foreign exchange risk arises
primarily with respect of HK$. For group companies with HK$ as their
functional currency, foreign exchange risk arises primarily with respect
to Renminbi. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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The Group has investments in the PRC, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group's investments in the PRC can be managed
through dividends paid outside the PRC.

During the year 2019, the Group did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no material change in the capital structure of the
Company during the year 2019. The capital of the Company comprises
ordinary shares and other reserves.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments (31 December 2018: Nil).

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK$0.03 per share to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 3 June 2020. Subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
25 May 2020, the final dividend will be paid on 26 June 2020.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the Company to
attend the annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 25 May 2020
(the "AGM"), the register of members will be closed from Wednesday,
20 May 2020 to Monday, 25 May 2020, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be
entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 19 May 2020.

The Board has recommended that the proposed final dividend of
HK$0.03 per share is payable to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Wednesday, 3 June 2020, being the record date for the
determination of entitlement to the final dividend. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 29 May 2020 to
Wednesday, 3 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares shall be effected. In order to be qualified for the
final dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 28 May 2020. Subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be held on Monday, 25 May
2020, the final dividend is expected to be paid on Friday, 26 June 2020.
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INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 1,857 employees,
including the executive Directors. Total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2019
were approximately HK$86.9 million, as compared to approximately
HK$41.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. Remuneration
is determined with reference to market norms as well as individual
employees’ performance, qualification and experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid with reference to the
Group's performance as well as individual's performance. Other staff
benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme in Hong Kong and the provision of pension funds,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by our Group pursuant
to the PRC rules and regulations and the prevailing regulatory
requirements of the PRC.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’'s employees are kept
at a competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group's salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually. The
Group also operates a share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 24 December 2012 (“Share Option Scheme”) where options to
subscribe for shares may be granted to the Directors and employees
of the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 68 to 70 of this annual
report.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in Notes 34 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have plan for material
investments and capital assets.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, the Group did not
have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the year 2019.

CHARGE OF ASSETS
There was no charge on the Group’s assets as at 31 December 2019
(31 December 2018: HK$3.3 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: Nil).

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

There was no New Business Opportunity (as defined in the
Company’s prospectus dated 31 December 2012 (the “Prospectus”)
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — New Business
Opportunity”) referred by the controlling shareholders of the
Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”) as provided under the
non-competition undertaking.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January 2013
(the “Listing Date”) and raised net proceeds of approximately HK$94.7
million. As at 1 January 2019, the unutilised net proceeds amounted
to approximately HK$24.2 million of which the entire amount was
intended to be used to fund the Acquisition if the Acquisition
proceeds to completion as disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 6 December 2018. During the year 2019, net proceeds of
approximately HK$24.2 million have been fully used for the Acquisition,
hence as at 31 December 2019, the unutilised net proceeds become
nil.

IMPORTANT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no important event
affecting the Company and its subsidiaries which has occurred after
the reporting period.
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= DIRECTORS
EECEENEHEENEEER - NKRVIE  OurBoard is responsible and has general powers for the management
FEeNERAFERHEAFRAHNE  and conduct of the business. The following table sets forth information

- regarding members of the Board during the year and up to the date of
this annual report:

o ZEBH Fie
Name Appointment Date Age
HITES Executive Directors
BEAREE Mr. Huang Chih Shen —E——FNAAZ+NAR

28 September 2011 49
EBRIEXT Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina —E-ZTF_-_A+WH

14 February 2020 51
PR AL S 5T A Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick —E——F+_-_A=-+mE*

24 December 2012* 55
BIFHTES Independent

Non-executive Directors

HEEBKE Mr. Wong Ting Kon —E——#+=-A=-+mWmH

24 December 2012 49
i 2+ Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina —2——&%+-_A=-+WmAH

24 December 2012 47
RIS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence —E-_—#H+_-_A=-+mWmA

24 December 2012 72
FRIRM 1B 1 Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny —E——-F+-A=+mWH

24 December 2012 62

e RZZEZTHE-_RF+MAHT
* Resigned on 14 February 2020
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CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Z&R), aged 49, is the chairman, chief
executive officer and an executive Director of the Company, and one
of the founders of the Group. He was appointed as the Director with
effect from 28 September 2011. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for
the overall management, operations and the charting and reviewing
of corporate directions and strategies of the Group. Mr. Huang has
approximately 25 years of experience in the business of the garment
industry. Prior to establishing the Group in 2003, he has been a
director of Shing Fun Knitting & Garment Limited, a related company,
since March 1994. Mr. Huang is one of the founders and has been
the director of Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Speedy Garment”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, since its incorporation in 2004. Furthermore, he
has been the director of most of the Group’s subsidiaries, including
Jointex Garment Manufacturing Limited (“Jointex Garment"),
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limited (“Speedy
Dongguan”), Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited (“Pageant”) and
Well Faith Enterprise Limited (“Well Faith”). Mr. Huang was appointed
as a Honorary President of the Hong Kong Association of Youth
Development since November 2017. Mr. Huang was a director of
2010/2011 the 43rd, an advisor of 2011/2012 the 44th, 2012/2013 the
45th, 2013/2014 the 46th, 2014/2015 the 47th and 2015/2016 the 48th
of Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. Mr. Huang received his secondary
school education in Hong Kong until March 1986. As at 31 December
2019, Mr. Huang held 100% interest in Sky Halo Holdings Limited (“Sky
Halo"), our corporate Controlling Shareholder.

Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick (BR# ), aged 55, was our
executive Director and joined the Group in February 2004. He was
appointed as the executive Director with effect from 24 December
2012. He was primarily responsible for the business development,
research and administrative management. He was the director of
certain of the Group's subsidiaries previously. Mr. Chan resigned
as the executive Director with effect from 14 February 2020. As at
31 December 2019, Mr. Chan held approximately 5.51% interest in the
Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina (EE1), aged 51, is appointed as
our executive Director on 14 February 2020. She has over 26 years
of experience in the textile industry and the garment field in Hong
Kong, the PRC, Europe and the United States of America. Ms. Huang
graduated from the Lingnan University in Hong Kong in 1993 with a
Higher Diploma in Banking & Finance and subsequently obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in 1996. She joined Well
Faith, a subsidiary of the Company, in April 2016 and is currently the
managing director of Well Faith. She is responsible for managing Well
Faith’s business, including sales and marketing. Ms. Huang is the sister
of Mr. Huang Chih Shen, an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December 2019, Ms. Huang held
approximately 0.0153% interest in the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Ting Kon (ZE®), aged 49, is an independent
non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 24 December 2012
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from University of Windsor,
Canada. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Wong is currently a partner of Chan Wong & Company C.PA.
Mr. Wong has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Bortex Global Limited (stock code: 08118) since October 2017 and
he was an independent non-executive director of Inno Tech Holdings
Limited (stock code: 08202) from February 2018 to August 2018.

Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina (Z# M), aged 47, is an
independent non-executive Director. She joined the Group on
24 December 2012 when she was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. She obtained a bachelor degree in Laws from
City University of Hong Kong in 1995 and a master degree of Laws in
International & Commercial Law from University of Sheffield in 1996.
Ms. Pang was admitted as a solicitor in 1999 and is currently a solicitor
and work in private practice.

20 AFEIRBIEI AR A A) o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



SBNSREIEEBEE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

RARELE 725 ABYIERTEZ -FR
TE——F+ A+ OAMAKRER I
BEEZIABMYIENTES - RAERN -t
EF+—ARBEBREXBLEM R
_jl‘t/\i"f’ ABBEERXANENHE
XOE W — N\ —F X ARGRERENH
EHEITBMN-REEE—NN\NF—AE-F
ZEFNALAESEREPERE T ER
*%ﬁiihﬂi_? —ENAEERE
h&ﬁ;%%ia_? NE—ARHT
B R A BR A A (B 55 - 08493) 1Y
ﬁi%ﬂﬁﬁ% REEBENMAESHBRRE
EEFBERERBA

PRIGWHE L - 25k RBUIFENTEE BN
T CHETAZTMHAMAREE - W
ERERBUFNTEST RETBE T —FF
j'L)EJ TEEMENAUNRZZE-NFSNAR
DRIHER S A ERAR DA (RMH AR :
3683) FEHR A E (M AR :2331) R B
BZERR QR (RO :393) 8 E T IEH
TEF - BRETHREKKEZBEBFLR R
RRENEEARAREF RIF+TREGER2H
AEEtEREHB - FE-T—HFE=A—HKEH
ErAIHEEREEERKE -RE TG
REBLARAARBEZZEKE - RELTHN T
ZFEREEEARKRTFRT IR _ZZNFER
BRAEXRENEE R_EZNFEBAR
EREE BR_Z-NFEEESEFEE-
RZEBE-—Z=ZF+"A RETEFBELARKE
BEEBINEEE L

Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (&%), aged 72, is
an independent non-executive Director. He joined the Group on
24 December 2012 when he was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor’s degree in
arts from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970, a diploma
in education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December
1976 and a master’'s degree in education from Harvard University in
June 1981. Mr. Chang was the principal of Jockey Club Ti-I College
from January 1989 to August 2000. Mr. Chang was the headmaster
of Diocesan Boys' School from September 2000 to August 2012.
Mr. Chang has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Dragon King Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08493) since
January 2018. Mr. Chang is also at present a freelance writer for
SingTao Newspaper and Headline Daily.

Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny (BR#R#) , aged 62, is an independent
non-executive Director. He joined the Group on 24 December 2012
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.
Dr. Chan has been serving as independent non-executive director
of Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 3683)
since September 2010, Li Ning Company Limited (stock code: 2331)
since June 2004, and Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited (stock code:
393) since June 2019. Dr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in
the garment industry and is currently the chairman of Prospectful
Holdings Limited. Dr. Chan is active in community affairs in Hong
Kong. He was appointed as member of the Council for Sustainable
Development from 1 March 2015. He is a member of the Court of the
Open University of Hong Kong from 2012. Dr. Chan was appointed
Justice of the Peace in 2002 and awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star
medal in 2004, Silver Bauhinia Star medal in 2009 and Gold Bauhinia
Star medal in 2014 by the Government of Hong Kong. Dr. Chan was
conferred Doctor of Business Administration, honoris causa by the
Open University of Hong Kong in December 2013.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Kai Yiu (3RRX2E) , aged 40, the company secretary and
the chief financial officer of the Company, is in charge of planning and
management of accounting, finance related matters and corporate
reporting of the Group. Mr. Cheung joined the Group in April 2014
as chief financial officer. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung was
a senior manager of an international audit firm where he joined as
a staff accountant in September 2002 and was promoted as senior
accountant, manager and senior manager in October 2005, October
2007 and October 2011, respectively. Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in June 2002. Mr. Cheung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the top
priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good corporate
governance is one of the key areas that lead to the success of the
Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing enhancements
of the efficiency and effectiveness of such principles and practices.

During the year 2019, the Company had complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The roles of the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company are not separate and both are performed by
Mr. Huang Chih Shen. Since the Directors meet regularly to consider
major matters affecting the operations of the Company, the Directors
consider that this structure will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Directors and the management of the
Company and believe that this structure will enable the Company to
make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently. The Company
understands the importance to comply with the Code Provision A.2.1
and will continue to consider the feasibility of appointing a separate
chief executive officer.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
securities transactions. All Directors confirmed that, after specific
enquiries were made by the Company, they have complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout
the period from 1 January 2019 to the date of the Board meeting
approving the annual results announcement for the year 2019.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant
employees who, because of their office or employment, are likely to
be in possession of inside information in relation to the Company’s
securities has been requested to follow such code when dealing in
the securities of the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ccomposition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, of which two are
executive Directors, and four are independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board and the biographical details of each
Director are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 18 to 22 of this annual report.

During the year 2019, there was no change in the composition of the
Board while Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina was appointed as an executive
Director and Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick was resigned as the
executive Director on 14 February 2020, respectively.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board discusses the overall strategy as well as the operational
and financial performance of the Company. Other Board meetings
will be held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. The table below sets out
the attendance of all members of the Board at the meetings held
during the year 2019:

BEEHER
Directors’

Attendance
Exeea
Board Meeting

HITES: Executive Directors:
BEREE(FEFTHAEL) Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 4/5
PR AL S 5T A Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick

(R—ZT-_ZF_A+MABHE) (Resigned on 14 February 2020) 5/5

BYKBITES: Independent Non executive Directors:

ETEHEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 5/5
B0k e Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 4/5
SR M SE A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 5/5
GE AL Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 5/5
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There are currently four independent non-executive Directors who
represent over one half of the Board and Mr. Wong Ting Kon has the
appropriate professional qualifications as required by the Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for attending
regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas and other
relevant information are provided to the Directors in advance of Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.
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Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by
the company secretary and such minutes are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director.

GENERAL MEETING

All Directors attended the annual general meeting of the Company on
27 May 2019 and the extraordinary general meetings of the Company
on 25 March 2019 and 27 May 2019 respectively.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing the
Company's affairs, including the responsibilities for the adoption
of long term strategies and appointing and supervising senior
management to ensure that the operation of the Group is conducted
in accordance with the objective of the Group. The Board is also
responsible for determining the Company’s corporate governance
policies which include: (i) development and review of the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) review and
monitoring of the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; (iii) review and monitor the
issuer’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) develop, review and monitoring of the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) review of the Company's disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their respective
written terms of reference as approved by the Board, these Board
committees are governed by the Company's articles of association
as well as the Board's policies and practices (in so far as the same
are not in conflict with the provisions contained in the articles of
association). With the new composition of members of the nomination
committee, remuneration committee, audit committee and conflicts
committee, the independent non-executive Directors will be able to
effectively devote their time to perform the duties required by the
respective Board committees.
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The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management of
the Company under the leadership of the executive Directors. Clear
guidance has been made as to the matters that should be reserved to
the Board for its decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital,
finance and financial reporting, internal controls, communication
with shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out on pages 85 to
184 were prepared on the basis set out in Note 2.1 to the financial
statements. Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely
manner in accordance with statutory and/or regulatory requirements.
The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditors of the Company on the Company's financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 75 to 84 of this
annual report.

Throughout the year 2019, the Company complied with Rules
3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Except as disclosed in the
section “Directors and Senior Management Profile” above, there is
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among members of the Board.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives relevant guideline materials
and attends a training regarding the duties and responsibilities of
being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the
Directors, duty of disclosure of interest of the Group. Continuing
briefings and professional development to Directors will be arranged
whenever necessary.

During the year 2019, the Directors have attended external training
and/or seminars and have read materials covering topics such as
business and performance of the Company and accounting issues.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

All independent non-executive Directors have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three years,
subject to re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one third shall be the retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire
in each year will be those who have been the longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment, but as for persons who
became or were last re-elected as Directors on the same day, those
who should retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after their appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 24 December
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with Code
Provisions A.5.2. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and to make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
The nomination committee comprises 3 independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence (Chairman),
Mr. Wong Ting Kon and Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina.
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During the year 2019, one meeting of the homination committee was
held and the attendance records of individual committee members are
as follows:

HE
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RIS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 1/1
EE®RLE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 1/1
i 2+ Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 11
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to the skills, experience, education background, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, and also the Company’'s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations required for the positions.
All candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth in
Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be
appointed as an independent non-executive Director should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in September
2013 and amended the policy in December 2018. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the nomination committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. If it
involves the appointment of an independent non-executive director
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall also consider the
perspectives, skills and experience that the person can bring to the
Board, and how the person would contribute to the diversity of the
Board. The Company shall take into account its own business model
and specific needs, and disclose the rationale for the factors it uses
for this purpose. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board as at
the date of this annual report:

Chinese
ZEA

Ethnicity Age Group Directorship with
503 FHraR| the Company
(Number of years)
BERDF
E (F8)

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted and achieved:

(1) at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(2) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications,

(3) atleast 40% of the members of the Board shall have more than
20 years of experience in the garment industry and shall have

China-related work experience; and

(4) at least one of the members of the Board shall have property
investment and development experience.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 24 December
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.25
and 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee was adopted in compliance with Code
Provisions B.1.2. Its terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of
the Group and to ensure none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration. The emoluments of executive Directors are determined
based on the skills, knowledge, individual performance as well as
contributions, the scope of responsibility and accountability of such
Directors, taking into consideration the Company’s performance
and prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of
independent non-executive Directors is to ensure that they are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the
Company's affairs including their participation in respective Board
committees. The emoluments of independent non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience, knowledge,
duties and market trends. The remuneration committee consists of
3 independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. Pang Yuen Shan,
Christina (Chairlady), Mr. Wong Ting Kon and Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung,
Terence.

Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

During the year 2019, one meeting of the remuneration committee
was held to, amongst others, assess performance of executive
directors, approve terms of the executive directors’ service contracts,
and review and approve the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. The attendance records of
individual committee members are as follows:

HE
ZTEBRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

B0k g Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 1/1
ETHEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 1/1
RIS AE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 11
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 24 December 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule
3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the audit
committee was adopted in compliance with Code Provisions C.3.3
to C.3.7. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things,
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors, review the financial
statements and provide material advice in respect of financial
reporting, and oversee risk management and internal control
procedures of the Company at least annually. The audit committee
consists of 3 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Ting Kon (Chairman), Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina and Mr. Chang
Cheuk Cheung, Terence.

The audit committee reports to the Board and has held
regular meetings since its establishment to review and make
recommendations to improve the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal controls.

During the year 2019, two audit committee meetings were held to
review and discuss with the management of the Company and the
external auditors the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, as well as internal controls and other financial reporting
matters. The attendance records of individual committee members are
set out below:

HE

BITERRE

Number of

Meetings

Attended/Held

ETEHEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 2/2
B0k g Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 2/2
RIS A Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 2/2

R-Z-NE FEERBLERGRME.
BT BB R IME R AT 5 E L ® TR R,
7 o

During the year 2019, the Board has not taken a different view from
the audit committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.
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CONFLICTS COMMITTEE

The Company established a conflicts committee on 24 December
2012. The primary duties of the conflicts committee are to monitor
and identify actual or potential issues of conflict of interests among
the Company’s Controlling Shareholders, and to ensure that the
Controlling Shareholders involving such conflicting interests would
take appropriate precautions and abstain from making decisions in
connection with such issues. The conflicts committee consists of four
independent non-executive Directors and one independent external
expert, Mr. Yip Yam Kuen.

During the year 2019, one meeting of the conflicts committee
were held to, amongst others, review the deed of non-competition
undertakings in respect of the Controlling Shareholders entered into
on 24 December 2012 to ensure ongoing compliance with the same
by the Controlling Shareholders. The attendance records of individual
committee members are as follows:

HE
ETEBRE

Number of
Meetings
Attended/Held

e AL Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 11
ETHEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 1/1
B0 e Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 1/1
RIS Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 1/1
HERELE Mr. Yip Yam Kuen 11
3l e AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
R-ZT—NF HE2-_T—NAF+-_B=+— During the year 2019, the fees in respect of audit services and
BItFERAEERBESHMEEAFTIRME  non-audit services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year

BRI RIFBRRE N ZERMT :

REEEZIRS
WIEEH 2 EXRE

Audit services for the Group
Professional services for the Acquisition

ended 31 December 2019 are set out as follows:

et ENEA
Fee paid/

payable
(F#xT)
(HK$'000)

1,680
1,458

et Total

3,138
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Kai Yiu, being our company secretary, is primarily
responsible for the company secretarial work of the Group. Mr. Cheung
Kai Yiu is also the Company’'s chief financial officer. The Company
confirms that Mr. Cheung Kai Yiu, for the year of 2019, attended no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Company against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for the
provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations. The Board is also responsible
for overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
established systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Group adopts a complete process style of risk management in a
functional bottom up manner, including risk identification, assessment,
evaluation and treatment. The functional areas across the Group
provide input of risks with treatments, which are appraised and
maintained. The risk management system, as well as the internal
control system, are continuous, proactive and systematic processes.

With the implementation of internal audit function, the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems is reviewed by
conducting internal audit assignments. Recommendations for major
observations of control weaknesses from the audits will be provided,
SO as to resolve material internal control defects.
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The Audit Committee, which was delegated by the Board, has
conducted a review, via an appointed Certified Public Accountant
firm to perform internal audit function, on the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control system put in
place by management covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Audit
Committee considered that the risk management and internal control
system of the Group are effective and adequate.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene
an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") of the Company are
prepared in accordance with the Articles of Association as follows:

(1) Two or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company;, shall have the right, by written notice, to require
an EGM to be called by the Directors of the Company for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
Address: 19/F, Perfect Industrial Building
31 Tai Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
Email: info@speedy-global.com

(3) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board does not proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them may do
so in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

34 AFEIRBIEI AR A A) o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



FEBIB|MS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRRAMARABEABBESS 2EH W4
FRWT:

HoAE - BBNEFER
KRB
EXTEKRE19E

BE info@speedy-global.com

B (852) 3583 1111

BE: (852) 3583 1118

WRRARRBERAGRZFZR BREKHE

E.ﬁ 2= ([ER])ER iiﬂiﬂﬂﬁéfﬂ N
NCIPAS RS -3 F 3K
EREBRARARBZEERNEFPERLRD

BR2E FHERARAZRBEERTERER
& AMBREFEHARMAABRRKEEREA-

HERBRRZEHABRRAKRRASFAEZ

mEJBAY GTBRREEME  FHEOT:

() BAUARRREBRBRLAMEZZR
RAUBETIAREEBAE-

2 ZARARRRBRREFRIAREG AL R R

‘9&* ﬁiﬁA$ AIREAFTREUAEAR
BAZERAMEZZRE 246
%21%$E FNEf -

For matters in relation to the Board, the shareholders can contact the
Company at the following:

Address:  19/F, Perfect Industrial Building,
31 Tai Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: info@speedy-global.com
Tel: (852) 3583 1111
Fax: (852) 3583 1118

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact information at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration
of the Proposal raised by the shareholder concerned at the general
meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in an
EGM of the Company or an ordinary resolution of the Company
in an annual general meeting of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level
of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. The Company
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and public investors.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public announcements.
Extensive information about the Company’s activities for the year
ended 31 December 2019 has been provided in this annual report.
While the AGM provides a valuable forum that facilitates direct
communications between the Board and its shareholders, the
Company also maintains its website www.speedy-global.com to
provide an alternative communication channel for the public and
its shareholders. All corporate communication and Company’s
latest updates are available on the Company’s website for public's
information.

During the year 2019, there has been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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ABOUT SPEEDY GLOBAL

Speedy Global Holdings Limited (referred below as the “Group”)
is primarily engaged in the apparel supply chain servicing
business in the year of 2019. The Group specialises on
product design and development, fashion trend ascertaining
and sampling, raw material sourcing, production order and
merchandise sourcing management, quality control, packaging,
inventory management and logistics management. As a leading
supply chain service provider, the Group sources and delivers
high quality products, such as woven wear, cut-and-sewn
knitwear and sweater knitwear, to a number of owners or agents
of global reputable brands across continents.

The Group appointed Allied Sustainability and Environmental
Consultants Group Limited (stock code: 8320) as an independent
consultant to prepare the Report and to conduct materiality
assessment on the Group's sustainable development.

During the year under review, the Group has acquired Splendid
Gains International Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Splendid Gains Group”) as its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. Splendid Gains Group is principally engaged in
the business of manufacturing and trading of sweater knitwear
products. This acquisition brings the opportunity for the Group
to drive business development through expanding the sales of
garment products and expanding the customer mix. The sweater
knitwear manufacturing plant also enables the Group to produce
its own products in the supply chain service to address risks
under the current trade war.
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2. ABOUT THE REPORT

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

Introduction

This is the fourth Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report (the “Report”) published by the Group.
With a vision of “Weaving a Value-added Garment Supply
Chain”, the Group would like to share its efforts in retaining
competitiveness in the garment market, preserving a
close-knit team and community and moving toward
sustainability in this Report.

Reporting Standards

The Report was prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in the Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). In preparation of the Report, the Group strictly
adhered to the principles of Materiality, Quantitative,
Balance and Consistency to disclose the ESG-related
measures and performances.

The corporate governance report of the Group was
prepared in accordance with all applicable code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules. Information regarding the Group’s
corporate governance was set out separately in the
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

Reporting Scope

The Report summarised the ESG performances of the
Group during the 2019 financial years from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).
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The Report covered the operations of the apparel supply
chain services. The reporting scope included the following
major business units of the Group:

° Speedy Garment Manufacturing (Hong Kong)
Company Limited;

° Jointex Garment Manufactory Limited,

° Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company
Limited;

° Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limited;
° Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited;
° Well Faith Enterprise Limited; and

° Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited

The relevant ESG information of Splendid Gains Group's
manufacturing plant, Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company
Limited, was included in the Report. Part of the Group's
manufacturing process was outsourced to independent
contractors; therefore, the relevant disclosure was
excluded from the Report.

The Group's businesses in apparel retail and property
investment were also excluded from the Report as no
transaction was recorded during the Reporting Period.
Likewise, the Report excluded the Group's remaining
subsidiaries because of the insignificant level of impact of
their operations on the Group's environmental and social
aspects. However, the Group shall consider any ESG-related
impacts due to any major future change in the business
scope of these subsidiaries.
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Environmental Material Issues

e  ETHBREIAR
Compliances with relevant
environmental laws

e HRER
Resource management

e RERBHMN
Greenhouse gas emissions

e EEYER
Waste management
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2.4. Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

2.5.

Assessment

The Group believed that the perspective of stakeholders
could provide guidance on its long-term business
development. In this connection, the Group is dedicating to
promoting active stakeholder engagement via establishing
effective communication channels and collecting their
feedback.

With the assistance of the external consultant, the Group
has identified the following material issues:

HEEERE
Social Material Issues
o BTRBEEEE
Compliances with relevant social laws
o EmkikEEE
Product and service quality
e [EE/EBIAER
Employment and labour standards
e BEREREZRE
Occupational health and safety

By carrying out a materiality assessment, the Group was
able to grasp a profound understanding of stakeholders’
perspectives and insights. The Board shall take the
identified material issues into consideration in terms of the
Group’s ESG approaches and measures. The Group would
continue to review the material issues and report on its
ESG performances in a transparent manner.

Contact Information

For any comments or recommendations on the Report,
please contact the Group through the contacts details set
out below:

19/F, Perfect Industrial Building,
31 Tai Yau Street,

San Po Kong,

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3583 1111

Fax: (852) 3583 1118
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3. GARMENT MARKET COMPETITIVENESS

3.1. Product Development
One of the core objectives of the Group was to build its
brand with advanced service and quality products in the
garment apparel industry. Accordingly, the Group has been
dedicated to upholding its standards in light of delivering
premium products and services to tailor customers’
preferences.

As one of the leading providers in the garment apparel
industry, the Group constantly sought improvements on
the design and quality of all of the Group’s products.
In addition, the Group regularly reviewed and adjusted
the cost, production, quality, technology and design in
accordance with market demands and trends in order to
satisfy its niche market.

To provide innovative and customised designs, the Group
has set up the Research and Development Centres (the
“Centres”) with showrooms. On one hand, the Centres
ensured that all products and designs met customers’
requirements and expectations. On the other hand, the
Centres constantly drove improvements and innovation
in products and services by providing tailored designs.
With the establishment of the Centres, the Group was able
to leverage its extensive knowledge of market trends to
create advanced products.

EmRat THERRAE R S E4
R Prototypes created for customers’ approval
Product Design W E| & S R s aT

and Development

Orders with designs received from customers

¥

BAREREEFRERR

AR

Raw Material
Sourcing

Suggestions to customers on types of fabric

R S| BEE R AR

EmEE
Production
Management

28

Distribution

Select and recommend quality raw material suppliers

¥

FAREESHRINE=SHERBER
BEFERHETEERIMEE

Retain and manage a diversified list of third-party manufacturers and
allocate production according to requirements of different sales orders

4

Bt FEEFROEERERZEERNER
Warehousing, inventory control and delivery of products to designated
warehouses and retail outlets
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3.2. Supply Chain Management

The Group recognised the suppliers and contractors as
a crucial part of ensuring product quality and delivery.
Thus, the Group’s operational model and policy focused
on enhancing the management of suppliers/contractors’
quality. To diversify the supply chain, the Group anticipated
to expand the geographic spread of suppliers through
engaging suppliers located in Southeast Asia, including
Cambodia.

Under the operational model, the Group forced
implementations to oversee its suppliers/contractors and
conducted assessment on them. By this mean, the Group
shall exclude all suppliers/contractors that did not pass or
undergo the assessment.

The Group has set up a monitoring system to manage the
procurement practices. For instance, the system kept track
of the purchasing price of raw materials for the Group's
long-term evaluation. The Group also reviewed the system
records periodically to identify any abnormal fluctuation in
terms of prices and supplies. Besides, all the procurement
procedures were standardised to ensure that suppliers
were in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.

The breakdown of suppliers by geographic location were
listed as below:

HEREE
Breakdown by Number of
Geographic Location suppliers
Cambodia 53
Hong Kong 170
Indonesia 1
Italy 22
Japan 5
Korea 5
Macau 3
China 482
Spain 2
Turkey 3
UK 1
USA 4
Vietnam 4
Total 755
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To further enhance competitiveness, the Group has placed
a high emphasis on the policies of quality assurance and
product responsibility. In this instance, the Group invited
the National Product Quality Supervision and Inspection
Centre for Apparel and Garment Products of Textile
Industry to conduct checks on the quality of fabrics and
garments.

In recognition of the Group’s ongoing effort, the Business
Social Compliance Initiative, a recognised initiative aiming
at improving social performance in the increasingly
complex global supply chains, awarded the Group with
the quality management certification. This certification
demonstrated the Group’s dedication to deliver quality
products and build customers’ satisfaction. In pursuance
of additional global accreditation, the Group is committed
to further providing tailored and high quality products and
services for customers.

Throughout the value chain, starting from product design
to delivery, the Group has fully complied with all standard
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. As a
result of the Group's effort in upholding product and
service quality, there was no material complaint or product
recall over the Reporting Period. However, in case of any
future complaint, the Group shall respond in a timely and
professional manner to address the issues and develop
measures to prevent reoccurrence of similar situations.

Product Quality

In the Cambodia factory, the Group recognised quality
control as one of its key priorities. In this regard, the
Quality Assurance (“QA") department took samples of
incoming materials through various tests to ensure the
durability and colour fulfilled customers’ preference. Clear
operation guidelines and stringent standards were posted
in the work stations for employees to follow. The Inspection
department also performed quality checks at different
production stages to test the products prior to packaging.
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Product Safety

Delivering safe products was another priority in the factory
from souring, manufacturing to packaging. The Group
established rigorous procedures and standards to inspect
the fabric materials and products. For instance, the Group
required every finished product to pass through metal
detector before shipping to prevent the attachment of
needle on the sweaters.

Intellectual Property and Data Protection

Upholding a responsible and ethical business image also
helped to enhance competitiveness; therefore, the Group
has stipulated policies to protect intellectual property
rights and the private data of all consumers, suppliers and
contractors.

In respect of suppliers’ intellectual property rights and
confidentiality, the Group safeguarded them by restricting
the use of their trademarks in any unauthorised events.
In addition, the Group has a well-established recording
system and deterioration procedures for the data collection
and handling. As outlined in the Group's internal rules, all
employees were required to adhere to the system. Besides,
the Information Technology Department strictly prohibited
unauthorised employees to access any party’s private data
through electronic devices or relevant systems.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

4.1. Cohesive Team

Devoted employees were the cornerstones of the Group’s
business success as they supported daily operation and
drove long-term development. Therefore, the Group is
devoted to creating an inclusive workplace for employees
to dedicate themselves and achieve continuous growth
with and within the Group. To build such working
environment, the Group strived to manage its human
resources in a respectful and fair manner.
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Employment and Labour Standards

The Group adopted a non-discrimination and open
recruitment approach, and selected suitable talents based
on their skills and qualifications. During the recruitment
process, candidates were required to provide proof of
qualification, identification verification documents and
working permits to eliminate the risks of hiring child and
forced labour. If any forced or child labour was discovered,
the Group would immediately intervene the violation and
offer reasonable compensation based on the SA8000
standard developed by Social Accountability International.

In effort to uphold a cohesive and harmonious working
culture, the Group has established an anti-discrimination
policy in accordance with the local laws. The policy
safeguarded employees’ equal opportunities and
prohibited all kinds of discrimination regarding gender,
race, age, religion and disability in the workplace. To
enhance employees’ relationships and sense of belonging,
the Group also organised staff activities and festive
celebrations. In the Reporting Period, the Group invited
workers and government representatives of the province
to join its Khmer New Year Celebration on the Cambodia
premises.

To attract and retain talents, the Group offered competitive
remuneration packages, additional paid leaves, reasonable
working hours and rest periods. On top of that, the
Group also provided rewards and bonus to outstanding
employees as an incentive to praise and encourage
their continuous hard work. In the Reporting Period, the
Group complied with all relevant laws and regulations on
employment and labour practices.
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As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had
a total of 1,857 employees. Employees breakdown by
different categories is listed as below:
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Number of

Breakdown Employees

Total Number of Employees 1,857
By Gender

Male 566

Female 1,291

By Geographical Location

PRC 255
Hong Kong 55
Cambodia 1,547

Safe and Healthy Workplace

The Group endeavoured to provide a safe and healthy
workplace for employees through risk identification
and prevention. Therefore, the Group conducted risk
assessment to identify the underlying industrial risks as
a way to initiate safety preventive measures. Moreover,
the Group carried out safety audits on site to further
analyse the relevant measures, review the efficiency of the
implemented safety measures and develop improvement
plans. On top of that, the Group provided the employees
with necessary safety equipment in the workshops to
reduce the risk and impact of industrial accidents.

MFRIRIKIEARBR A F] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



IRIF B NEIEHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

FHRTRERZRERAEE M
RERG L2 RIUILKEEEEE
ETEEZ R EHRBRIBOL
E2RBEEMR FRRE L 2ERRE
tE4E 3151 EHIR R BRI E I R &
SHAURE  ANBRE THBEAR
SERRRERRERT KNEE
MRIIRGEBERNE BRRET
RHEES R -

ERASERE2ZNREZEE A&
BEEREAMBEEEREZETH
HFT B ERDR AR AR RS HIRE
MEZLERNTFEREMIETHE
o

15 5 58 3%
REBERBEAN TIEBE R R
EBEEMENER X B NF
EEMENRR -BHMHAIHREL
RUEARBEI (FREEASEY
EREAREERENNT A R
BEHRE AEESERRETH
BIEAIET 8 PIMMAEERERRZ S
ZHo

REF
RTHEBRMEANEERRA
RER B I E A BPBUR R AR AR
NiEEREMNEBE BEFHR
BEEMABREE TR -AKED
HERRBR N RE BT8R
EAPRIEETR-RREELE
BEPERMFURIE —FRET
o

REEHRE - AEE W RFERER
EREREMBARESERER
TR

The Cambodia factory implemented a number of measures
to oversee and maintain on-site safety. A safety committee
was established to constantly review and update
safety-related practices in the Cambodia factory. In addition
to posting safety warnings and operational guidelines, fire
safety training and urgent evacuation were conducted
regularly to enhance staff's capacity to react and escape in
case of emergency. The Group also set up on-site medical
facilities to provide medical support for staff at all time.

As a result of the comprehensive safety measures, the
Group complied with all applicable laws and regulations in
regard to occupational health and safety with no report of
work-related fatality in the Reporting Period.

Training and Development

The Group recognised a strong workforce as the key to
maintain efficiency of its business operation, and strived to
support employees’ capacity building. Induction trainings
were provided to factory staff as a way to convey the
Group’s expectations and enhance their capability to
conduct duty. In the Reporting Period, the Group has
provided employees with different training programmes,
covering topics such as production techniques and safety
standards.

Anti-corruption

To uphold an ethical and transparent business principle, the
Group has established internal policies and corresponding
standards to guide employees on preventing corruption
behaviours, including bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group has set up a whistleblowing policy
and channels for employees to report on any suspected
misconduct. The senior management was responsible for
investigating the cases and taking further follow-up actions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not noticed any

material non-compliance with local laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption.
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4.2. Community Engagement

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed
to bringing positive impacts to the community in which
it operates. As a way to contribute back to the local
community, the Group has donated HK$406,240 to
various organisations such as, World Vision, Hong Kong
Federation of Business Students, Joyful (Mental Health)
Foundation Limited, Yau Ma Tei Concern for Resident
Rights Association, Kowloon Federation of Associations
Social Capital Development Foundation Limited, and Hong
Kong Shine Tak Foundation Association Limited, during the
Reporting Period. The Group also encouraged employees
to participate in volunteering activities and has formed a
volunteering service team.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSCIOUSNESS

5.1. Environmental Management

With a focus on production management, the Group always
paid close attention to the implications and importance of
environmental protection in its operations. Thus, the Group
strived to bring in sustainable values into its daily business
activities through a series of environmental control
measures.

The Group established a set of environmental management
policies in accordance with the Environmental
Management System Standards, ISO 14001, of the
International Organisation for Standardisation. In addition
to adopting the international standards, the internal
policy also followed the 12 principles of the World Wide
Responsible Apparel Production. Under such policy, the
Group prevented any non-compliance on the local relevant
environmental laws and regulations.
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5.2.

As a global provider outsourcing the manufacturing of
products, the Group realised its responsibility in ensuring
the environmental stewardship of its suppliers and
contractors. Thus, the Group stipulated an environmental
manual to oversee their impacts and compliance. Under
the manual, the Group required them to implement
environmental management thoroughly and comply with
all relevant environmental laws and regulations in where it
operates.

In the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to environmental
protection, emissions, resource consumption and waste
management.

Energy Use and Emissions

On top of managing the performance of the contractors,
the Group also placed an emphasis on reducing its
environmental footprint. In this regard, the Group
implemented measures to periodically monitor and
progressively reduce both energy consumption and
emissions.

Energy Consumption

The Group consumed electricity at offices, factory
buildings, showrooms, canteen, dormitory and other
common areas under its operational control; petrol fuel
for vehicular transportation; and wood fuel for generating
hot water. To conserve energy, the Group required
employees to turn off all lighting, electrical appliances and
equipment in the premises when not in use. In addition,
environmentally friendly operating guidelines are posted in
the factory buildings for staff to follow.
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In support of energy conservation, 80% of the existing
lighting fixtures have been replaced by electricity-saving
devices in the Dongguan premise. Whereas, the Cambodia
factory integrates passive building designs to bring in more
natural lighting for electricity reduction. Environmental

e R ETRE SRR AT AT I © audit is also conducted annually to evaluate the feasibility

of installing energy-efficient appliances.

AEB D RILER R LART A K
HRERFBER ARG EEH
BEIR (£ A BUR - LMEE R AR BERT
ENERIMNERTEYE - THAK
BEE UERREETRRY

The Group has also set up a monitoring system to evaluate
and regulate energy consumption. The system also
collected relevant energy usage data in order to initiate
future reduction plans and observe any abnormal trends.
Electricity meters were installed in the factory to monitor

o consumption and perform risk assessment.
AEEHE
Overview of Electricity Consumption
EREN By
Business Units Unit
BB NAE R ENE JK LB
Hong Kong Office and Showroom Mot MWh 200.6 138.3
REEMFEIRIKE KB R AT JK LB
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limited MWh 3,227 .1 6,102.3
BERX(EMN)BRAF JKELBF
Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limited MWh 210.3 241.8
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited® 2 JKELBF i A
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited Nete2 MWh 2,478.5 N/A
BHEEE JK FL B
Total electricity consumption MWh 6,116.5 6,482.4
Mz : BEMNRESBEMEIERAN - Note 1:  The increase in electricity consumption in Hong Kong was mainly
—NEXNARBRAERBETERS due to the fit-out works performed for office relocation in June
Tige 2019.
Mz : RPR=ZFT—hFNAKRERBRE Note 2:  The Cambodia factory was acquired in April 2019. As such, the

T Bt REHEERE -
FOAZ+T-AMBEBRE M
E_Z-)\FRESNHEFTEH
o

disclosure figures only represented relevant data from April to
December 2019, whereas there was no relevant record of data
or electricity consumption in 2018.
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

1R 3E F 2 B HEIR2
Overview of Fuel Consumption Note 1&2

By
Unit
ﬂ_
L 101,080 69,366
i 32
L 19,200 N/A
N TEA
Tonnes 1,820 N/A

The Cambodia factory was acquired in April 2019. As such, the
disclosure figures only represented relevant data in the factory
from April to December 2019, whereas there was no relevant
record of data or fuel consumption in 2018.

The Group did not consume diesel and wood fuel in 2018;
therefore, the relevant data was not disclosed.

The relevant consumption data of wood fuel was estimated
based on the average weight of procured products.

Greenhouse Gas and Air Emissions

As a result of the consumption of electricity, fuel and wood
combustion, direct and indirect greenhouse gases (“GHG")
and air emissions, such as particulate matter, sulphur
dioxide and nitrogen oxides were generated. Through
the monitoring system, the Group has also audited GHG
emissions as a way to review its environmental footprint
and help develop reduction plans.
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BE R B R
Overview of GHG Emissions Note 1&2

BE B
Indicator Unit

HE—HER

EREBHMR

“RREE

Scope 1: Direct GHG Emission Tonnes of CO2 3,954.0 187.8
equivalent (tCOze-)

HE—HBEBEEREBEM W —ftixE =

Scope 2: Indirect GHG Emission tCO2e- 3,431.6 3,796.7

BREEREEHMEN —afitixEs

Total GHG emissions Note 3 tCO2ze- 7.385.6 3,984.5

M1 : — - N\FEERENAE LR Note 1:  The 2018 figures included relevant emissions data from the
EMRBEERBE: M= —hF offices and showrooms; while the 2019 figures included relevant
BEAENAE RINERIHEY emissions data from the offices, showrooms and factory. The
HEEREE - BRMARZZT—NF Cambodia factory was acquired in April 2019. As such, the
mAKERBERE IR Bt RE disclosure figures only represented relevant data in the factory
BEEEIBRR-_ZT—-—NLFNA from April to December 2019, whereas there was no relevant
E+_ANBEEEE mrE_F record of data or GHG consumption in 2018.
—NERERBHNEOIEBLE
ik -

Mz : BREKRETK HAEFEELET Note 2:  Air emissions were insignificant and not material to the Group's

A WAREK B EEE - operation; therefore, the relevant data were not disclosed.
FES . SoAE I E =R = REEBEMAAE Note 3:  The relevant data for scope 3 GHG emission was excluded

W RN AEEESE
BHELTEA-
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As the Group recognised waste as the direct reflection of
its environmental footprints, it has taken various measures
to reduce and manage the production and manage the
handling of waste.

To decrease the production of waste, the Group constantly
encouraged employees to optimise resources where
possible. For non-disclosure of general waste and intensity,
the relevant waste data was not available because
the Group did not have an established mechanism for
collecting the relevant waste data in the factory, dormitory
and offices. However, the Group has developed plans to
gather the statistics in the future.

The Group took environmentally friendly criteria into
consideration when procuring production supplies. For
example, the Group is progressively switching into using
durable and reusable trays, hangers and cutting boards to
eliminate single-use items.

In the course of design and development, the Group used
a wide variety of fabrics for sampling and testing in the
showrooms. In order to enhance resource efficiency, the
Group required employees in the workshops and factory,
as well as the outsourced contractors, to recycle and reuse
the leftover scraps of fabric materials whenever possible.
During the production, staff were instructed to collect
fabric scraps and threads for donation.

The Group did not generate a significant amount of waste
due to the nature of its operations. Thus, the relevant waste
figures and intensity were not disclosed. Regardless of the
insignificant generation of waste, the Group was dedicated
to handling and disposing such waste in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations. In addition, the Group
appointed qualified contractors to collect different types of
waste.
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The Group mainly used packaging materials in the
Cambodia factory, whereas the showrooms in Hong Kong
or the PRC did not have any direct use of packaging
material. In addition to selecting packaging materials
based on customers’ preference, the Group also prioritised
the selection of sustainable materials such as recyclable
plastic packaging.

Overview of Packaging Material Consumption

BE
Indicator

B R
Packaging material Noe1&2

Mkl : FIEEMBEMBEERERNEER
ZE-NFNAE+ZARBOK
B R IBR S

M2 BN -T-AF0OAKRERESE
TH-BEilt RESEEE-"F—H
FOAZET = AMMABEEE M1
BT \FEEMEHEFRNEH
FLERBIUE o

AxER
AEEHNBKBERS SKFMH-
WRAERTRAK - FERRNEBE
SKEUKR B EE BT EE |
TARESIREHTHEK SKIZEH
KRBT E - RRIBELIRK A
S BT R R IR SR KU E
B KO UK o AN SR B 7E {5 A3 K 2 Al
GREITIRIE RO o o A E
EERBEBKE  AFEER &R
EHFEER -

BEMBHESE
By
Unit
(53
PCS 2,055,000
Note 1:  The disclosed figures of packaging materials represented carton
boxes and plastic bags procured by the Group from April to
December 2019.
Note 2:  The Cambodia factory was acquired in April 2019. As such, the

5.4.

disclosure figures only represented relevant data from April to
December 2019, whereas there was no relevant record of data
or packaging material consumption in 2018.

Water Management

The Group’s water consumption included the usage in
the dormitory, toilets, offices and factory. Although the
Group did not encounter any issues in sourcing water,
it still sought ways to increase water efficiency through
advocating water conservation. In the Cambodia factory,
the Group sourced water from the nearby river and from
the on-site retention pond that collected storm-water. The
Group treated and tested the water prior to using. Besides,
the Group installed on-site water meters to monitor and
review the consumption pattern.
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Business Units

AXKEHE
Overview of Water Consumption

B

BAPAE KRS =0 oK
Hong Kong Office and Showroom Nete1 m3 115 87
REMFERKEKXBR AT AVAYS I
Dongguan Speedy Garment Manufacturing Company Limited m? 164,753 175,680
BEEX (EMN)BRAF] 750K
Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Limited m? 2,917 6,314
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited */#2 oK TiEA
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited Note2 m?3 89,176 N/A
BRKE oK
Total water consumption m? 256,961 182,081

Mz : BENRAKEEMEIBERAN_-Z
—NERARRRAETRELTEE
ITR-SENAKERITERR
REEABURL -

M2 BN -Z-AFHARERBR
TH-Filt RESREEE-_F—H
FUAZE+ = AMEBERE M
BT \FRKEMAHLEHK
o

ITHHEKERHARBEL -]
BRARBEKRIERG  HHERATA
EKETRE - BEHMBAER -2
w8 A 85 325 K TTER AR - R AR
BRI eREERE-
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6.

Note 1:

Note 2:

The increase in water consumption in Hong Kong was mainly
due to the fit-out works performed for office relocation in June
2019. There decrease in water consumption in Koyip was mainly
due to the decrease in the number of employees.

The Cambodia factory was acquired in April 2019. As such, the
disclosure figures only represented relevant data from April to
December 2019, whereas there was no relevant record of data
or water consumption in 2018.

In the factory, wastewater was generated from the
washing machines. A wastewater treatment system is set
up on-site to treat the effluent before discharge. The local
government took sample of treat effluent every one to two
months to ensure the discharge would not bring harm to
the environment.

LOOKING FORWARD

In the bid to explore new opportunities and drive business
continuity, the Group is committed to bringing in values
of innovation, creativity and sustainability. In pursuance of
this commitment, the Group looks to promote operating
efficiency, environmental stewardship and relationship with key
stakeholders through technological advancement and active
stakeholder engagement.
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7. B 7. PERFORMANCE TABLE

L

Indicator Note 1

REHEREE
Energy Consumption and Intensity

BN JK L BF
Electricity MWh 6,116.5 6,482.4
v i
Petroleum L 101,080 69,366
e 7t @A
Diesel| Note2 L 19,200 N/A
ARHF BR R} H=2 83 yNL i@ A
Wood Fuel Noe2&s Tonnes 1,820 N/A
HBEERESE FREH
Total Energy Consumption GJ 55,952.91 22,526.21
BEEREE FIRER
WABEBET

Total Energy Intensity GJ/HKD million 50.09 26.25

revenue

BERBHEHERBEN
Greenhouse Gas Consumption and Intensity "o

#HE— EERE RIS M-S LiRE 8
Scope 1: Direct GHG Emission Note3 tCO2e- 3,954.0 187.8
#HE—:RAEREREHEN M-S biRE =
Scope 2: Indirect GHG Emission tCO2e- 3,431.6 3,796.7
o 2 SRS AR R RS WE— LIRS &
Total GHG Emissions Mot tCO2ze- 7,385.6 3,984.5
RERBETE M-S iRE 8
WAB&EET
Total GHG Intensity tCO2e-/ 6.61 4.64
HKD million
revenue
BEMBERE
Packaging Material Consumption
BRI (53 i A
Packaging Material Note2&6 PCS 2,055,000 N/A
AKEREE
Water Consumption and Intensity
BAKE N
Total Water Consumption Tonnes 256,961 182,081
BRAKER N/ BB A8
Total Water Intensity Tonnes/employee 138.37 606.94
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

The Cambodia factory was acquired in April 2019. As such, the disclosure
figures only represented relevant data from April to December 2019,
whereas there was no relevant data in 2018.

The Group did not consume diesel, wood fuel and packaging materials in
2018; therefore, the relevant data was not disclosed.

The relevant consumption data of wood fuel was estimated based
on the average weight of procured products. The increase in Scope 1
GHG emissions was mainly due to the consumption of wood fuel in
the Cambodia factory, resulting to an overall increase of the total GHG
emissions and intensity.

Air emissions were insignificant and not material to the Group's operation;
therefore, the relevant data were not disclosed.

The relevant data for Scope 3 GHG emission was excluded because of its

insignificance to the Group’s business operation.

The intensity figures for packaging material are not disclosed. The Group
looks to refine the current data collection system and disclose the
relevant data in the future.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and those
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 28 to
the Financial Statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 10 to 17 of this annual report. This
discussion forms part of this director’s report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group continues to update the requirements of the relevant
environmental laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure
compliance. The Group strive to minimise environmental impact by
saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. We also require the manufacturers and the constructor
to operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries and regions, particularly
in the Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia, applicable to it to ensure
compliance. Substantially majority of the Group's assets are located
and the Group’s revenue is mainly derived from operations in these
areas. The Group was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January
2013. During the year 2019 under review, the Group complied with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and Cambodia in
all material respects.

Key Relationships

(i) Employees
The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to attract,
retain and motivate employees. Key personnel have been part
of the management team since the inception of business.
During the year 2019 under review, the Group considered the
relationship with employees was well and the turnover rate is
acceptable and normal.
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(ii) Suppliers

The Group has developed long standing relationships with a
number of our vendors and take great care to ensure they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group selects its
manufacturers and constructors carefully and requires them to
satisfy certain assessment criteria including experience, financial
strength, reputation, ability to produce high quality products and
quality control effectiveness.

(iii) Customers
The Group is committed to offer a broad and diverse range
of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality fashion to our
customers. We also stay connected with our customers in order
to meet their need. We have ongoing communications with them
through various channels like telephone, email and marketing
materials.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2019 are set out in
the Financial Statements on pages 85 to 184 of this annual report.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.03 per
ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the register of
members on 3 June 2020 (2018: HK$0.01 per ordinary share).

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the Company'’s existing dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

° the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

° the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

° the Group’s liquidity position;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of the
Company; and

o other factors that the Board deems to be relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 9 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had share premium, other
reserves and retained earnings in the amount of approximately
HK$119,544,000 (31 December 2018: HK$110,528,000) which is
available for distribution to the shareholders subject to conditions of
the Articles of Association.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year 2019, the Group made charitable contribution totalling
approximately of HK$406,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's largest and five largest customers accounted
for approximately 39.7% and 71.1% of the total revenue for the year
2019. Purchases from the Group's largest and five largest suppliers,
which comprise raw material suppliers and third party manufacturers,
accounted for approximately 13.4% and 41.7% of the total purchases
for the year 2019.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company, had any beneficial interest
in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
28 t0 the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year and up
to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Chih Shen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Huang Li Hun, Serlina (Appointed on 14 February 2020)
Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick (Resigned on 14 February 2020)
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Ting Kon

Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina

Mr. Cheung Cheuk Cheung, Terence

Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years either from the
Listing Date or 14 February 2020 and shall continue thereafter until
terminated by, not less than three months' notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years from
15 January 2019, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting and until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

No Director is bound by any service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to be
independent.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Huang
Li Hun, Serlina and Mr. Wong Ting Kon are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained
by him as a Director or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company during the year 2019. The permitted indemnity provision is
in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(@) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity connected with a Director of the
Company is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year 2019 or at any time during the year
2019.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 18 to 22 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group fell within the following bands:

BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-AF —T—)\F
2019 2018
A A
Number Number
W ZE Bl Emolument bands

= 500,000/ 7T Nil = HK$500,000 4 4
1,000,001 7t 21,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 2 1
3,000,0017% 7T Z3,500,0007% 7T HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 1 1
4,500,001/% 7T 25,000,000/ 7T HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 - 1

5,500,0017% 7T £ 6,000,000/ 7T HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 1

REBEEMHRAMEICZREMATHRENE
EFMRhAESHERE—FFEIHHE
RIS R R M 7E34 5% 23 »

Further particulars regarding Director's remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 34 and 23 to the
Financial Statements, respectively.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance to which the Company or its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Controlling Shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest subsisting at the end
of the year 2019 or at any time during the year 2019.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 January 2013
and the deed of non-competition undertakings in respect of the
Controlling Shareholders was entered into on 24 December 2012
(the "Deed of Non-Competition”). The Controlling Shareholders have
confirmed to the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition provided to the Company during the year 2019.

The conflicts committee of the Company and the independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance and
also the confirmations by the Controlling Shareholders and, on the
basis of such confirmations, are of the view that the Controlling
Shareholders has complied with the Deed of Non-Competition which
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual declaration
in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-competition
undertaking as provided in their service agreements.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the status
of compliance as well as confirmation by each executive Director of
the Company and, on the basis of such confirmation, are of the view
that such executive Directors of the Company have complied with
the non-competition undertakings under their service agreements
and these non-competition undertakings have been enforced by the
Company in accordance with its terms.

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY

There was no New Business Opportunity (as defined in the Prospectus
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — New Business
Opportunity”) referred by the Controlling Shareholder as provided
under the Deed of Non-Competition.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had entered into
a number of transactions with parties which are connected persons
of the Company under the Listing Rules. These transactions are
considered to be continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which need to be disclosed herein in compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules or the conditions of waivers
previously granted by the Stock Exchange. Details of the continuing
connected transactions are as follows:

—E-h#F
2019
FER
HK$'000 HK$'000
S EMEEAY Rental expenses payable or paid to:
BEEEREEBRAA Shing Fun International Industrial Limited
([BERp]) e ("Shing Fun International”)? 1 794 1,588
SEBK (BMN)BRAA Jinfeng Garment (Huizhou) Company
(&Z=7M])° Limited ("Jinfeng Huizhou")® 2 702 731
B A ERIIK (M) B R 2 7] Yicheng Weaving Garment (Huizhou)
([MEm M) c Company Limited (“Yicheng Huizhou")° 3 234 244
REMEBRFRAA Dongguan Zhirong Garment Company
([RE=HE]) Limited (“Dongguan zhirong")® 4 6,941 9,401
8,671 11,964
a. BLEEHHREEERAR ([MHEEE]ExE a Shing Fun International is beneficially owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group Limited

1009 35 - 11 51 98 B8 45 o 3 O 46 2 T 5 50%
e -

b. CEBENBEEER(FE)ERAAERESR
100%tE s e BER (FB)ERARNBETR
S5 4 B A U B 50%E 23 B0 1 B 4R 1B B 25 U 5 100% 4

s
e

c. BHEMAERER (FR)ERARNERHES
100%# 25 - M EMIZA (FB) BRAFABESR
5 A B A B 50%HE 11 B0 AA L 55 B B 55 7 5 100% 4%

5o

d. RMEHEEEXERAREZEBI100%HE
= i 25 BLEL K A R 2 7 Bl fABest Connect Global
Limited & 25 #E 5 100%# 25 * M Best Connect Global
Limitedps t 7= 22 3% A BR A 7] & 25 7 A 100%4 25 © tt
FEBRARARBAETRLEE S EBS0%ER

(“Peakwin Group”), a company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.

b. Jinfeng Huizhou is beneficially owned as to 100% by Jin Feng Holdings (H.K.)
Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group, a
company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.

C. Yicheng Huizhou is beneficially owned as to 100% by Yi Cheng Holdings (H.K.)
Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group, a
company owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately.

d. Dongguan zhirong is beneficially owned as to 100% by Master Trend Garments
Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by Best Connect Global
Limited, which in turn is beneficially owned as to 100% by Century Grand Holdings
Limited. Century Grand Holdings Limited in turn is beneficially owned as to 50% by
Mr. Huang Chih Shen.
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Notes:

Shing Fun International as landlord and Speedy Garment, a subsidiary of the Group,
as tenant, entered into a renewed tenancy agreement dated 12 December 2017,
pursuant to which Shing Fun International agreed to lease to Speedy Garment,
Workshops A and B on 13th Floor, Wing Chai Industrial Building, Nos. 222-224 Choi
Hung Road, Nos. 27-29 Ng Fong Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for a term of three
years commencing on 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020 for office
use.

Another renewed tenancy agreement dated 12 December 2017 was entered into
between Shing Fun International, as landlord, and Jointex Garment, as tenant, under
which Shing Fun International agreed to lease to Jointex Garment, Workshops C and
D on 13th Floor, Wing Chai Industrial Building, Nos. 222-224 Choi Hung Road, Nos.
27-29 Ng Fong Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for a term of three years commencing
on 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020 for office use. Both tenancy
agreements are collectively known as “Hong Kong Office Tenancy Agreements”.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Office Tenancy Agreements, Speedy Garment and
Jointex Garment would pay Shing Fun International monthly rentals of HK$132,330
in total.

The annual cap for the rental payable by Speedy Garment and Jointex Garment
to Shing Fun International under the Hong Kong Office Tenancy Agreements, for
each of the two years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 and the year ending
31 December 2020, is HK$1,587,960.

The Group has moved out from the above premises on 28 June 2019 and no further
rental expense will be incurred under the Hong Kong Office Tenancy Agreements
since 28 June 2019.

Jinfeng Huizhou as landlord and Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Manufactory Ltd. (“Koyip
Huizhou"), a subsidiary of the Group, as tenant, entered into a renewed tenancy
agreement dated 12 December 2017, pursuant to which Jinfeng Huizhou agreed
to lease to Koyip Huizhou, Shenfeng Industrial Park, Julong Village, Yuanzhou Town,
Boluo County, Huizhou, the PRC, with a gross floor area of approximately 6,000
square metres, for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2018 and
ending on 31 December 2020 for office and sample room use.
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Pursuant to the tenancy agreement, Koyip Huizhou would pay Jinfeng Huizhou
annual rental of RMB648,000.

The annual cap for the rental payable by Koyip Huizhou to Jinfeng Huizhou under
the tenancy agreement, for each of the two years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019 and the year ending 31 December 2020, is RMB648,000.

3. Yicheng Huizhou and Koyip Huizhou entered into a renewed tenancy agreement
dated 12 December 2017, pursuant to which Yicheng Huizhou agreed to lease
to Koyip Huizhou, Shenfeng Industrial Park, Julong Village, Yuanzhou Town, Boluo
County, Huizhou, the PRC with a gross floor area of approximately 2,000 square
metres, for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2018 and ending on
31 December 2020 for residential use.

Pursuant to the said tenancy agreement, Koyip Huizhou would paid Yicheng
Huizhou annual rental of RMB216,000.

The annual cap for the rental payable by Koyip Huizhou to Yicheng Huizhou under
the said tenancy agreement, for each of the two years ended 31 December 2018
and 2019 and the year ending 31 December 2020, is RMB216,000.

4. Dongguan Zhirong and Speedy Dongguan, a subsidiary of the Group, entered into a
tenancy agreement dated 12 December 2017. Pursuant to the tenancy agreement,
Dongguan Zhirong agreed to lease to Speedy Dongguan, No. 52 Fuhai Road, with a
gross floor area of approximately 36,567 square metres for factory and dormitory
uses with a monthly rental of RMB694,773 for a term of three years commencing
on 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020.

The annual cap for the rental payable by Speedy Dongguan to the Dongguan
Zhirong under the said tenancy agreement, for each of the two years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019 and the year ending 31 December 2020, is
RMB8,337,276.

The Group has moved out from the above premises on 8 October 2019 and no
further rental expense will be incurred under the above tenancy agreement since
8 October 2019.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
who have confirmed that the transactions have entered into: (a) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) either on
normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to
or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of shareholders of
the Company as a whole; and (d) within the caps or the aggregate
transaction values set out in the Company’s announcement dated
12 December 2017.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Company in this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor's letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 1 April
2019, Shing Fun International as landlord and Pageant, a subsidiary
of the Group, as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement dated
1 April 2019, pursuant to which Shing Fun International agreed to
lease to Pageant, 19/F, Perfect Industrial Building, 31 Tai Yau Street,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term commencing on 1 April
2019 and ending on 31 December 2020 for office use. Pursuant to
the tenancy agreement, Pageant would pay Shing Fun International a
monthly rental of HK$170,000. Shing Fun International is beneficially
owned as to 100% by Peakwin Group, a company owned as to 50%
by Mr. Huang Chih Shen ultimately. It was disclosed that, the entering
into of the lease and the transaction contemplated thereunder (the
“Transaction”) constituted a continuing connected transaction of the
Company. During annual audit, the Board reclassified the Transaction
as a connected transaction of the Company pursuant to the new Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards No. 16 “Leases” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts.

Furthermore, reference is made to the Company’s announcement
dated 8 October 2019, Dongguan Hongyue Garment Company Limited
("Dongguan Hongyue") as landlord and Speedy Dongguan, a subsidiary
of the Group, as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement dated
8 October 2019, pursuant to which Dongguan Hongyue agreed to
lease to Speedy Dongguan, No.27 Huailin Road, Huaide Village, Humen
Town, Dongguan City, PRC, with a gross floor area of approximately
8,649 square feet for a term commencing on 8 October 2019 and
ending on 31 December 2020 for office and dormitory uses. Pursuant
to the tenancy agreement, Speedy Dongguan would pay Dongguan
Hongyue a monthly rental of RMB210,093 (excluding value-added
tax). As further disclosed in the announcement, the entering into of
the lease and the transaction contemplated thereunder constitute
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Dongguan Hongyue is owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang
Chih Shen ultimately.
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Moreover, on 6 December 2018, the Company and Splendid Gains
Holdings entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to acquire, and the
Splendid Gains Holdings conditionally agreed to sell the shares,
representing 100% of the issued share capital of Splendid Gains for
a cash consideration of HK$180,000,000. The Acquisition has been
completed on 1 April 2019. Upon completion of the Acquisition,
Splendid Gains Group become the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company. Splendid Gains Group is principally engaged in
the business of manufacturing and trading of sweater knitwear
products. Further details of the Acquisition were disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 6 December 2018, 1 April 2019 and
6 September 2019 and the Company’s circular dated 5 March 2019.
As Splendid Gains Holdings was at the date of the Acquisition owned
as to approximately 81.6% by the brother of Mr. Huang Chih Shen and
8.2% by Mr. Huang Chih Shen’s sister-in-law while Mr. Huang Chih
Shen is the ultimate controlling party and chief executive officer of
the Group, the Acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the year 2019 is disclosed in Note 32 to the Financial
Statements. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's existing Share Option Scheme was approved for
adoption pursuant to a written resolution of all of our shareholders
passed on 24 December 2012 for the purpose to provide our Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible participants and for
such other purposes as the Board approve from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at
their absolute discretion, grant or invite any person belonging to any
of the following classes to take up options to subscribe for shares:

(@ any employee, supplier/service provider, customer, partner
or joint venture partner of the Group (including any director,
whether executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group) who is in full time or part time employment with the
Company or any subsidiaries, or

(b)y any person who have contributed or may contribute to the
Group.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue on the Listing Date unless the
Company seeks the approval of the shareholders in general meeting
for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share Option Scheme provided
that options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating 10% limit.

Details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in section headed
“Statutory and General Information” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 24 December 2012 and remains in force until
23 December 2022. The Company may, by resolution in general
meeting or, such date as the Board determined, terminate the Share
Option Scheme at any time without prejudice to the exercise of
options granted prior to such termination.

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option granted
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the
grant of option (“Date of Grant”) which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five

trading days immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.

3 o ANNUALREPORT2019 B9



EETHE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BNBERER AR ANAR AR R R 1.008
THERERBRENRE -REIR DA BARE
BERANRBZEHHIREZ KFFHETE B
8 152 4 o AR YR P AU RE St 81 T e (1o R A A
TR B L B R TNSEBI10F R
10FHRE—KRER BAXBRE ST
B AR L R STRTIR ©

R 15 BB B A 81 AN 1 B AE o] L At i B A At
S TROEMPTA BT R M Al e %
1T Y78 2% A) 37 AL 40 48 81 T 15 8 860,000,000
Rt IR AFRABMARF D ETROD
10% -

P EAAI21E A AR AR 3% 8 AR 5t &1 R &2 4
BRACEMERENBRE (BEETE &
R AT B R BITRM & R ET
RN ERSEE TSEREETROEED
1% o fie 3 — 2545 H O 8 B 7B 5B B 1 96FR B -
AIZBRFARE T % B R RRE EHRADEG
HECRAERT AIEE -

R-FT—NF  WERIEERAER S EW
Bk

Dt AR BN RBE-—T—NF+=
A=+—HLEFEEAERE A28 REZER
NGRS NI IS ) NI R S Gl R 3
RARERZHNRINT BEESEEBWE
AR AR EAEA B R sk EHEE
MR - T EEAIEE  H BR8N
FRBEERBARA R L ERE T
MK EITEEIBRER -

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an offer
of the grant of the option must be made within the date as specified
in the offer letter issued by the Company. The exercise period of any
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not be longer
than 10 years commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the
last day of such 10-year period subject to the provisions for early
termination as contained in the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of new shares of the Company that may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share options schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 60,000,000 shares, which represents 10% of the shares in
issue of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to issuance of a circular by the
Company and approved by its shareholders in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

During the year 2019, no options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2019 was any of the Company and its
holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares
in, or debentures of, the Company, or had exercise any such right.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s Directors and chief
executives had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company;, its Group
members and/or associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code:

The Company

HEHARER
2 Vg £:3:3-1 (BaE1) BRESAB ST
Number and class Approximate
Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
of interest (Note 1) shareholding
XEEERERE (H2) 327,242,688 54.54%
Interest of a controlled e=gld(h)
corporation (Note 2) 327,242,683
ordinary shares (L)
EalEEA 33,031,758[% 5.51%
Beneficial owner =gald(h)
33,031,758
ordinary shares (L)
Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of our Company or
the relevant associated corporation.
2. The disclosed interest represented the interest in the Company held by Sky Halo

which was in turn wholly owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen, an executive Director
as at 31 December 2019. Therefore, Mr. Huang Chih Shen was deemed to be
interested in the interest of Sky Halo in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

38 Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick resigned as the executive Director with effect from

14 February 2020.

"EHARER
2% £:3:3-1 (BaE1) REMAB D
Number and class Approximate
Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
of interest (Note 1) shareholding
EHEAA 10,0000 & i@ Iz 100.00%
Beneficial owner 10,000
ordinary shares
Note:
1. The disclosed interest represented the interest in Sky Halo which was wholly

owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen as at 31 December 2019.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company, any of its Group members or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group
members and/or associated corporations which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

BHEHARER
B/ REEMtE (HEEE1) BREMABE D
Number and class Approximate
Capacity/nature of securities percentage of
of interest (Note 1) shareholding
EREAA 327,242,6880% 54.54%
Beneficial owner AL
327,242,688
ordinary shares (L)
ERS 327,242,6880% 54.54%
Family =gty
327,242,688
ordinary shares (L)
BEnBEA A 30,204,0004% 5.03%
Beneficial owner AL
30,204,000
ordinary shares (L)
Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares of our Company or
the relevant Group member or associated corporation.
2. Sky Halo was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire issued share
capital of which was wholly owned by Mr. Huang Chih Shen as at 31 December

2019.

38 Ms. Cheuk Wai Ying, spouse of Mr. Huang Chih Shen, was deemed to be interested
in Mr. Huang Chih Shen'’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members
or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year 2019, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the
Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that competes or
may compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict
of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities, and neither
did the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year 2019.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the year
2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be found in
the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 23 to 36 in this
annual report.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report and Note 35 to the
Financial Statements, there is no important event affecting the Group
which has occurred after the reporting period.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

By order of the Board

Speedy Global Holdings Limited
Huang Chih Shen

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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MR KB
To the Shareholders of Speedy Global Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Speedy Global Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 85 to 184, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019,

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

LI KA it B PT  P BOK TR
Mk : +852 2289 8888  HH : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Net realisable value of slow-moving and obsolete inventories

° Acquisition accounting

Goodwill impairment assessment
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Key Audit Matter

BN E TR EERENEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FHERBREFENATEEFE
Net realisable value of slow-moving and
obsolete inventories

2R A MR MR M 40 R K HEE10 -
Refer to note 4(b) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEERENHEERZRBKAR &
BEWRECHBR BHEEMNEELR
ﬁ%&ﬁ%&@ﬁﬁxﬁmﬂfﬁﬁﬁwéé o % H
MREFEARLBERE-R_ZE—-NF
+TZA=+— El ERERBEUTEIRE
1% 492,900,000/8 7T ©

The Group manufactures and sells a wide
range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear
and sweater knitwear products. The value
of the products will drop significantly when
they become obsolete or there is a change
in customers’ demand. The slow-moving and
obsolete inventories may be impaired. As
at 31 December 2019, management made a
provision of approximately HK$2.9 million for
such inventories.

EREEEERIEMREFTENERATZERF
ERFEERFENREK HBEEETNY
FHEERFEEFTE FUFENBTHEK
R HMBREAE-

When determining the net realisable value
at the year end, management considered
ageing, preliminary production and sales plan
agreed with customers, historical experience
of selling inventories of similar nature and
other available factors.

BMEIRtEEnRERERE M HIE
rREFEMNAERFERTEFELEEH
B o

We focused on this area because
management made significant judgements on
the estimation of net realisable value of the
slow-moving and obsolete inventories.

BPEMEEREBEFHEREFTEN AT #IEFE 2 NME WA
HA BRI

We obtained management’s assessment on the net realisable value
of slow-moving and obsolete inventories and tested its mathematical
accuracy.

HRESHEELINAEREFRE:
Specific procedures on the impairment amount included:

e HMERZEFEBRBEZERERBRES BHMEAARBFEEAER
AR FEERERRENERM:

o We obtained the ageing profile of each inventory item and tested
the accuracy of the ageing profile, on sample basis, by checking
to the inventory records;

o BPIAER T G EEEEETE
AAEITIZE &

° We checked the selling prices obtained from subsequent sales
orders and invoices on sample basis, and compared to the cost
of inventories; and

RBEREDHNEERFEN

e EMUBEEEHTEHEHEENFHEAREFENZREE
FHEEBREETNR WReZREERRZ  EEETE 8
UERMERMSER BLENEREEAFENT ST

o We also discussed with management as to its assessment on
the net realisable value for slow moving and obsolete inventories
with no subsequent sales, collaborating explanations with sales
orders, current market prices of similar products, historical
margins and marketability of relevant inventories, as appropriate.

ERNERTORRF BEREMIENRERBCDESAERERE-

Based on procedures performed above, the impairment provision
made by management is supported by the available evidence.

3§ « ANNUALREPORT2019 /7



RV 73 SRS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

HEETEE

Key Audit Matter

BN E TR EERENEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

WEEEEHEE
Acquisition accounting

2456 WS RER M A R i 5E31 ©
Refer to note 4(d) and note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REBEEZZE—-NAF+ZA=+—8BLHF
E &5 B4R (E180,000,0007% T U B8
BEAREERARNRENBAR ([BHESE
E ) - 2% MR 75 £9134,000,0007% 7T ©
During the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group acquired Splendid Gains
International Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“Splendid Gains Group”) at an aggregated
cash consideration of HK$180 million, then
recognised a goodwill of approximately
HK$134 million.

WEEENSTEEFTEEREFELE 2B
- ZEETRAEBEEKENA#NEE
LR EAEN A TFE BB R#ENE
ERSEBEIINEHE MMERERBEMETH
X

Accounting for acquisition requires
management to make a number of
judgements, which focus on, but are not
limited to: determine the fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. Independent external valuations
were obtained for all the identifiable assets in
order to support management’s estimates.

EHREBEE FMBEHEFLEEREA
B AFEAEBREmAAR-

Fair values of the identified monetary assets,
non-machinery related tangible assets and
liabilities were their book costs.

BMERGEREEHRBESEEFKBNE B EERMAEEE
BN TFEREE -

We obtained management’s estimation of the fair value of the
identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed during the
acquisition.

Bz EBHGHEFEE:
Specific procedures on the assessment of the estimation included:

U B EB N EEMMNEEES N REHME:
° We evaluated the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

U BMERMASBHESEROB T TEMAERAN T
° We assessed the methodologies used with the support of our
internal valuation experts;

o BMEBRMABHEZKOBE T FHEERE - 2RF0BIK
K FIIEE AR EAR RS EE AT & ENEE (i)
FRE - FAAUCARR BEEEEREFEENEREENE

. we assessed the appropriateness of the key assumptions,
including (i) inflation rates, rate of newness, estimated useful
lives, and salvage value for machinery related tangible assets,
(i) discount rate, remaining useful lives, attrition rate, and
contributory asset charge for customer relationships, with the
support of our internal valuation experts; and

o HME BESERBEINBEERREAREBETHERS
ARERMEERDFTE AR BRI R RSB -

° We performed testing on the source data provided by the Group
to the independent external valuer, on a sample basis, to satisfy
ourselves of the accuracy and reasonableness of the information
used by the valuer.

BEBEMAATHNEREF KRB EENEERMERENARG
B RAFEMGTAAGERNE -

Based on procedures performed above, the estimation of the fair value
of the identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed are supported
by the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

E%Elﬁ%%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%’]ﬁ%ﬁ&Zﬂ?ﬁﬁ
FRMEEEXNNEB T Z2BEDITER

Ffr 1% 1&1@3’23&5&,\*@}@1&ﬁi?ﬁ#mﬁz
AETHRESR RIERRE FE (GEAIE
RAFEREE:

Fair values of the identified machinery
related tangible assets were derived using
the analytical trending method under
depreciation replacement cost approach.
The valuations are dependent on certain
key assumptions that require significant
management judgement, including inflation
rates, rate of newness, estimated useful lives,
and salvage value.

EPBARATENERARAZET 2%
BWR LT BEAGE - HEIVANEETEE |
BEARHAEG 28 THRRE BERE.
FpFEAFH RAELEREERK-
Fair value of the customer relationships
were derived using the multi-period excess
earnings method under the income approach.
The valuations are dependent on certain
key assumptions that require significant
management judgement, including discount
rate, remaining useful lives, attrition rate, and
contributory asset charge.

BMEIRE—#HE RARAETAFTER
ARBEEBEEBMIUERNHE 2B TERMRR-
We focused on this area because the
determination of fair values was dependent
on certain key assumptions that required
significant management judgements.
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B R A R
Goodwill impairment assessment

28456 WS R ER W aae) M9 -
Refer to note 4(e) and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

R—_ZE—NAF+=-—A=+—H EBE£EZ
&5 2 5 #9134,000,000/7% 7T - I £ 5t H 1E R
BERE-

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's
goodwill amounted to approximately HK$134
million with no impairment provision.

ERERKBRAEERARSELSEMIE
HHFEREBE - FRAEBNUEFRRREESR
ENREREN BEREEHEFLEREHA
BIELAE BREBAEEERE -BEE
MR RAEIRE o

Management considered the Splendid
Gains Group as a cash generating unit and
calculated its value in use. The value in use
was based on the discounted future cash
flow forecasts where management made
judgements on certain key inputs, including
forecasted sales growth rate, budgeted gross
margin, and discount rates.

BME IR E—#E RAAFTERRET
FESAEEEHENERBAMBE-

We focused on this area because the
calculation included certain key inputs which
required significant management judgements.

BMEERETEEEEERN B RENGHI AL S 2ER G-
We obtained management’s impairment assessment on goodwill and
tested its mathematical accuracy.

HEFHABREFEE:
Specific procedures on the impairment assessment included:

U EETHREEERBARFNERE:
° We understood from management the business plan for the
coming year;

o EEHEAHEEREREEEMNRERII=FNR LRI E
TR

° We compared the forecasted sales growth rate and budgeted
gross margin with the historical performance in the recent three
years,

o EEEBEBMHABEESIRETLE SR ER FTE
A®aE = &

° We assessed the discount rate applied to the impairment review
by comparing to our internal benchmark data; and

o EELHIBAHEE R RE  TEE EH DA KR AL IR 175U R
A -

o We performed sensitivity analysis over the forecasted sales
growth rate, budgeted gross margin and discounted rate.

BEFREBITZEF BEREFEL CRENEEAFEBRE -
Based on procedures performed above, the impairment assessment
made by the management is supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Chiu Yin, Ivan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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RO TSI R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

WR+=—BA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —ET—)\#F
2019 2018
THE T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
I ENN S Property, plant and equipment 6 63,575 12,883
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 7 18,516 =
mEE Intangible assets 8 9,350 379
Ea Goodwill 9 134,035 -
B IEEE Deferred tax assets 19 1,884 2,364
227,360 15,626
REEE Current assets
BE Inventories 10 71,919 101,412
JE UK BR X N L b U 3R B Trade and other receivables 12 189,656 109,956
TE A Prepayments 13 41,620 38,005
HekReZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 169,775 346,179
472,970 595,552
EEHE Total assets 700,330 611,178
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RO AT R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R+=A=+-8
As at 31 December
—g-hE —B-)\F

2019 2018
FE T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

R EQUITY
AATESEBEAEMGER  Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company

& 7 Share capital 15 60,000 60,000
&0 m B Share premium 15 53,441 53,441
E b Other reserves 16 18,523 19,081
REBEF Retained earnings 180,664 160,015
AR Total equity 312,628 292,537
=R LIABILITIES
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
B&E Borrowings 18 - 770
HEARE Lease liabilities 7 9,315 =
BEERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 4,867 =
14,182 770
nEaE Current liabilities
JE < BR 30 N HAth JE A< FRIE Trade and other payables 17 246,292 217,029
ABHAE Contract liabilities 5 2,926 2,569
BNHAR B & (& Current tax liabilities 23,405 10,724
B&E Borrowings 18 91,545 87,549
HEBE Lease liabilities 7 9,352 =
373,520 317,871
EE8E Total liabilities 387,702 318,641
EERAELEE Total equity and liabilities 700,330 611,178
FERE MBI R EEM T —HRE - The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read

on conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FEERIBMEZHMBEHMEN T =ZFF = The financial statements on pages 85 to 184 were approved by the
—tHESESgE THUTRKRES Board of Directors on 30 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

BER EET®
Huang Chih Shen Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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mOZEWMm®E
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE+t-A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
2019 2018
F#ExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Wes Revenue 5 1,117,035 858,343
$HE AR Cost of sales 22 (972,177) (761,202)
EF Gross profit 144,858 97,141
73 88 A AN Distribution costs 22 (10,100) (1,368)
TERFAX Administrative expenses 22 (92,600) (59,778)
E A Other income 20 1,004 1,661
Hiplezs, (B1E) —F&  Other gains/(losses) - net 21 176 (968)
rEHER Operating profit 43,338 36,688
B A Finance income 24 1,157 2,016
BLE KA Finance costs 24 (10,685) (10,703)
& R AN FRR Finance costs — net (9,528) (8,687)
BRFT 8B AR R Profit before income tax 33,810 28,001
FR8 %t 5 % Income tax expense 25 (7,161) (5,779)
EATEEFEA Profit for the year attributable to
FE A& & 9 g R equity holders of the Company 26,649 22,222
ERHEHMEEEE  {IBRFE Other comprehensive loss for
the year, net of tax
B rfpt EF S EEam iy Items that may be reclassified
EH subsequently to profit or l0Ss
N =R Currency translation differences (558) (3,743)
FATEHEFEA Total comprehensive income
BEFAZEKRARE for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company 26,091 18,479
FALRQFEZHEA Basic and diluted earnings per share
EEEANERERR for profit attributable to equity
BEER holders of the Company
(ABRETIR) for the year (expressed
in HK$ per share) 26 0.0444 0.0370

b e 2EK R E RN E—GFE -

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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BigmEs%

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ARAREREREAENL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

B2
Share
capital
FTET
HK$'000
(B=E15)
(note 15)

R4 a{E
Share
premium

Hit G
Other
reserves
?ma JL
HK$'000
(PBtzE16)
(note 16)

HK$'000
(FizE15)
(note 15)

REER
Retained
earnings
THT
HK$000

Total
AT
HK$'000

R=-Z-N¥-A—H Balance as at 1 January 2018

& -3 60,000 53,441 22,824 137,793 274,058
FREF Profit for the year - - - 22,222 22222
HizAEBE Other comprehensive loss = = (3,743) = (3,743)
FREMZHEHRE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - (3,743) 22222 18,479

RZE-N\§ Balance as at 31 December 2018

tZA=t+-RAz&tH 60,000 53,441 19,081 160,015 292,537
R=-Z-h%—-HA—A Balance as at 1 January 2019

A1 60,000 53,441 19,081 160,015 292,537
FREF Profit for the year - - - 26,649 26,649
Hinz2HEEE Other comprehensive loss - = (558) = (558)
FRAEMZEKE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - (558) 26,649 26,091

BEFA (UEEAZ  Transaction with owners in

5 ETZRS their capacity as owners
BERREZMRE Dividend declared and paid

e (note 27) - - - (6,000) (6,000)
RIZ-h%E Balance as at 31 December 2019

+ZR=t+-Rz&8% 60,000 53,441 18,523 180,664 312,628

LTl e RR R EREN T —HRE- The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE+t-A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hE —ZE-)N\F
2019 2018
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETEBNESRE cash flows from operating activities
LETEEIFTISIR S Cash generated from operations 29(a) 88,223 85,289
EARHLE Interest paid (10,685) (10,703)
BEATFTEH Income taxes paid (756) (9,324)
REFHNHEESRAFR Net cash inflow from operating
activities 76,782 65,262
RETENERSRE Cash flows from investing activities
WE—RHBAR 25K  Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary,

MR FT U IR & net of cash acquired (135,275) =

BEEWE BMBE&EE 25 Payments for purchase of property,

plant and equipment (6,706) (2,571)
BEEFEE IR Payments for purchase of intangible

assets (236) -
LEWE BB RZE Proceeds from disposal of property,

T8 58 plant and equipment 29(b) 128 325
B UH B Interest received 1,157 2,016
RETHENERSREFE Net cash outflow from investing activities (140,932) (230)
MEITHNEERE cash flows from financing activities
BEMEHRIE Proceeds from borrowings 340,391 112,755
EEEE Repayments of borrowings (433,516) (170,739)
HERNRZEEEFS Principal elements of lease payments (12,955) -
BRRE Dividend paid (6,000) =
REEBMIA SR FEE Net cash outflow from financing activities (112,080) (57,984)
iﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ%?‘ )] Net (decrease)/increase in cash

W) R and cash equivalents (176,230) 7,048
E%Dfﬁi&fﬁi%ﬁ% Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 346,179 342,910

b = E 5 ¥ fﬁ%& Effects of exchange rate changes

iﬁi—rf’fwz T on cash and cash equivalents (174) (3,779)
FRESRESEEY cash and cash equivalents at end

of the year 169,775 346,179
LR aRenEREEN T —HE- The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

90

—REHR

ABERHIERBR AR (A7) ME
MEBAR (REIAKEDEERER
SRERMBmEHEE ASREREE
2 B AR R KRR~ ﬁﬁﬁfﬂ%ﬁ%%&%?ﬁﬁ
A3k dm ) BRSSP B AR TS 26 7S (T AR (LB
ERBEH]) $EIJTE¢EP§E}\EA
ME(THBE]EERETEEH (1R
RTEEXBRYERERBRER
(MERERERBRER]) -

AKRBRRZE——FNAZ+NBIRIE
MEBHESRRE(ZE—ZFEBITR)
EREHSTMR T AERE2ERA
7)o 7 % =5 BR Hb Hk A Vistra (Cayman)
Limited, PO. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands °

ARARB-_ZE—=F—A+tHHARER
BHARSMABRAR IR LT -

BB BRI ZEERE
BT ([BT]) 250

BHMBHRTIA

E’ﬁ& ELilK K’ilzﬁﬂkﬂk/ﬂ&%fﬁ
BXTHNEHRRSEE

s RIF-NFOAKEHEBEERE
RARMEMBLAR (THAREE])
(RHME3 - BEYE -BE MR
1 (P aE6) 18 0 R R i 2 (MY 5
) REMEREE (KES) - A%
BoBRAHEECHEBRHENRED
e

o HHyFHMHEESIHEAN(RWFE
22)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Speedy Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the apparel supply chain servicing business which offers
a wide range of woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and
sweater knitwear products to a number of owners or agents of
global reputable brands (the “Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business”), the Group had also been engaged in the apparel
retail business operating in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") (the “Apparel Retail Business”), and the property
investment and development business (the “Property Investment
and Development Business”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
28 September 2011 as an exempted Company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is at the office of
Vistra (Cayman) Limited, PO. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus
Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 15 January 2013.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

The financial position and performance of the Group was
particularly affected by the following events and transactions
during the reporting period:

o The acquisition of Splendid Gains International Limited and
its subsidiaries (the “Splendid Gains Group”) in April 2019
(see note 31) which resulted in an increase in property,
plant and equipment (note 6) and the recognition of
goodwill (note 9) and other intangible assets (note 8). The
Group has enlarged its business in manufacturing and
trading of sweater knitwear products.

o The adoption of the new accounting standard for leases
(see note 2.2).
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RO R FS R 5E
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TESTHRME

AHE RN ERZERE VB RRE
FRER e E R EFT R -l A EAN
ZEBRERFMEESRFEERER -

21 mBEE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BFEBUBHREEARE
B R ARSI
AEBENEEWHRETIR
BEEEBMBEHRESEL ([EFB
M HEEN]) RBERQF
iR Bl (F6228 ) WK T B K
R

LA E
FERRTIVRFE SR AEE

wE

EEBERAHIHETER - 2
BEERHIEETR 2

T O T B - B H A A
METRRERE -E—1
E—A-BRKzEERH

HA 1T R AR
N PHE E3}
i34

ERMBERS e
EB|FE16%
ERMBERE B TEE R

R F95E AmE
ZEFK

BRREHEN  RBERARA
F28%% 2EENRY
ZEFK B

“T-hEE  ERMBREE
“B—+F Bl B
B FRLE

BRGEN  FHEEBR G
FIRBITAR  REE

2EE235% FERERENT

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(i) compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Compliance Ordiance Cap. 622.

(ii)  Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis.

(iii) New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations adopted by the
Group
The following new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued and
effective for the annual accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2019.

Standards, Amendments  Subject
or Interpretations

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Ccompensation

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
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AR O W B R EE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 FESTHBERBER 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
21 RBEE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iii) FEBERARFETER - 2 (iii) New standards, amendments to existing
HEEAIMICTRZE (&) standards and interpretations adopted by the
Group (Continued)

RN E B %@ E 2R The Group had to change its accounting policies as
Fl6% AEEBEFHES a result of adopting HKFRS 16. The Group elected to
IR 3R o 7N 5 (B 32 12 38 M ER 4 adopt the new rules retrospectively but recognised
FEl B - BER 2T —NF the cumulative effect of initially applying the new
—A—B®RAMLERIFE standard on 1 January 2019. This is disclosed in note
HRAWMEBEFZE THEER 2.2. Most of the other amendments listed above did
Mi5E2.2 o it Ko H b & not have any impact on the amounts recognised in
AR AR R ERN 28 prior periods and are not expected to significantly
WEAR T E HHHEEH affect the current or future periods.

IREHETEEEATE -

(iv) EZ{TEREMZFFTER - (iv) New standards, amendments to existing
HHEEERIBIETTRZRE standards and interpretations that have been
issued but are not effective
RREHHEDBMGE T TR Certain new accounting standards, amendments to
SR T E] 2 5t £ R ¥ existing standards and interpretations have been
WELEAMETRZE B published that are not mandatory for adoption during
REBRBERM -ZFE the current reporting period and have not been early
BIFEET T & 7 & A g R 2R 3R adopted by the Group. None of these is expected to
HHEBAEBENRAIER have a material impact on the Group in the current
HRRRGEEERTE - or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
RTI B ZEERNE
ZH - BITRRE e} EEtHEEN
Effective for annual
Standards, Amendments or accounting periods
Interpretations Subject beginning on or after
BB ENFEIRREBGETLEL BAZES S =
E22 5 AN
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material 1 January 2020
BB B MEEREIRZIERTA (¥BEE —E-FEF—HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
BB G ERE395% et —E-FF—HA—H

BB WS ERIET7H K
BB ME LB Z BRI A

Amendments to HKAS 39, Hedge accounting 1 January 2020
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

“E-N\FUBRERSER KBTI B EMSIESR —ZETETHE—-HA—H

Conceptual Framework for Financial Revised Conceptual Framework for 1 January 2020
Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting

ERM R EERNFEI75% Rz a4 —E-_—%—HA—H

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021

BRI RERERIE105% & REEHABRERNRNEEREZHAD ST
BB LR FE285 ZIEF] A BEHEIOTE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 FESHHEEXBE#E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

22 B BRENEE 2.2 Changes in accounting policies

AW ERE T IRAB BN BREE
AIF 165 HE WA BB AR &

By 488
.

W EXHE2IR AREZ B8
HERMAH —_E-NF—A—BiE
Ry BB ®EERF165% - &
SECORAEZ®ESE BRE
R B T BR M IR AT A R I
A T \FREP[OLBS
BETEY -HiL HEERRNE
ENEFHDBLABR T -NF
— A— BESMBARRR AR -
el @Rt BRI B 7E2.26 -

R E R Y &S ERIE165%
B REBEREHREEEGE
AE17SREECRADBEREE
HEI2HEERBERBE -%F
BEREENTBENRETE
WERAERBAART-NE—A—
AR EEEENTETERE R
E-NF-A—BsiEEaEER
EEBEANE IS REREN XS
4.75% °

BREMBEOBEAREHEHEZH
E AEEEBEAEEREE
BEMHBERBEZREAE (FRE
REMAERAEEENHERARZ
EEE-ERZEHRERTEY
BlmEERE1GSRH T ER A
BEAMARE REHENAES
R -

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases on the Group's financial statements.

As indicated in note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 from its mandatory adoption date of 1 January
2019. The Group has applied the simplified transition
approach and has not restated comparative amounts for
the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the specific
transition provisions in the standard. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening statement of financial
position on 1 January 2019. The new accounting policies
are disclosed in note 2.26.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as “operating leases” under the principles of
HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at
1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January
2019 was 4.75%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the
Group recognised the carrying amount of the lease assets
and lease liabilities immediately before transition as the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assets and the lease
liabilities at the date of initial application. The measurement
principles of HKFRS 16 are only applied after that date.
There were no measurement adjustments on the Group’s
finance leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 TESTHERHE)

22 BFHBENEE (&)
(i) FERATTRELE
RERERBEEV KRS E
AIF165% AEBEEEMUT
ZERMAROAITRET
A

e HABSEMBAURE
WHEAARAE
B R

«  EEENMARERT
BR3P (5 (R BRI R
H-R-F—nE— A
—BRmERAK:

s BRZF-NF—A—
ARBTREFHIR
2EAMEERESS
EEREEE:

o RERXRERB MR
BEENARAGERER
BEE R

s ERNBEEERIKRL
HomEss £AF
BomEEEN-

AEETEEETEHN
FHEREXRERBEHE
MERE/RENXBESHE
Mok RRBER
HZARI A KM
BEAKREREERER
BREGFTERFI75 K
RREBISTBTELHR
TESHEFEDNF
fle

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

94 AFEIRBIEI AR A A) o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

o relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to
performing an impairment review — there were
no onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019,

o accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months as
at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases;

o excluding initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application; and

o using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease
at the date of initial application. Instead, for
contracts entered into before the transition
date the Group relied on its assessment made
by applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease.



RO WIS R EE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 TEESTHEME &) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
22 B RENERE (&) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) HEEEZFE (i)  Measurement of lease liabilities

FH T
HK$’000

RZE-NF+=ZA=+—H Operating lease commitments disclosed

PR 8 E T E AR as at 31 December 2018 24,250
KAERBARBREREZ Discounted using the lessee’s incremental
S EEF KR borrowing rate at the date of initial
application 21,727
mrR=_=F—NF+=-A=+—H Add:finance lease liabilities recognised
HRAZBMEHREESRE as at 31 December 2018 1,066
B AERAEBEBEZEEEMEE  Less: low-value leases not recognised as a
liability (72)

RZE-NF-—A—HERZ Lease liabilities recognised as at

HEAE 1 January 2019 22,721
HAaiE: Of which are:
mEHEARE Current lease liabilities 10,868
ERBHERE Non-current lease liabilities 11,853
22,721
(iii) EAEZEE (iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets
EREBEAT - R A Under the simplified transition approach, the
BEERESERNERMNFNHE associated right-of-use assets were measured at the
EBENESEE WikH amount equal to the lease liabilities on adoption, then
RZEBE—NFF+A=1+— adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
H®ERE B MRARAER lease payments relating to that lease recognised in
MHEEE @ ERTEN K E the consolidated statement of financial position as
FFTEENFOSEFEE A at 31 December 2018. There were no onerous lease
EAAAHRYGERR S contracts that would have required an adjustment
MERAEEEELARNE to the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
BEHESR - application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 FESTHBERBER 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
22 S BENEE (£) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) ZEHEZENE (&) (iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets (Continuea)
ERRZEFRAERBAD The recognised right-of-use assets relate to buildings
FREEE- and motor vehicles.

i

As at
—E-hE —E-NEF
+=HA=+-—-H —H—H
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
T FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BF Buildings 17,563 21,655
"E Motor vehicles 953 1,234
18,516 22,889

(iv) RZE—NF—F—HYE (iv) Adjustments recognised in the consolidated

B BN R T EEN HE statement of financial position on 1 January

2019

RZZE-—hF—HA—8'8 The change in accounting policy affected the

FFREEESEERE VBRI following items in the consolidated statement of

KA TYIEEBEEETE: financial position on 1 January 2019:

e UE -BWERZE-R e property, plant and equipment — decrease by
L #91,234,0005%8 7T ° approximately HK$1,234,000.

s FHAEEE-ZIH e right-of-use assets — increase by approximately
22,889,000/ 7T HK$22,889,000.

e BHE-IHL 41,066,000 e  borrowings - decrease by approximately
HTT e HK$1,066,000.

e HEBGB LMY e lease liabilities — increase by approximately
22,721,000 7T HK$22,721,000.

H-_ZT-hF-—HA—B2ZRKR The net impact on retained earnings as at 1 January

BRNZBFER/T . 2019 was nil.

) HEAHETEE (v) Lessor accounting
AN E B RS ER 16 The Group did not need to make any adjustments
e AEBHBARBEL to the accounting for assets held as lessor under
EHEEAIBARBEERE operating leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
BT EIEER PR 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 TEBHBEME (L)

2.3 AOtRAIRER AR

(i)

(ii)

B &2 A

B B8 2 B4 AN Sk B R A
BOMEER(BRAERBK
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AIEEER L HENE
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FOAEARR (2BMEE24) -
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AEEKEFERESERS
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BlR)AERA R o o JE TR AR AR &5
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REZENEREZEERAR
AHEAARBEERTNEL
R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to note 2.4).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of financial position respectively.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with owners of the Group. A change
in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.
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2.4 ¥KEHt 2.4 Business combinations
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The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether

B EmEE - WE—FHNEB AR equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
FrgEmRERRE: consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
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comprises the:
° fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
o consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as gain from bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

2.5

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chairman of the board, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the chief operating decision-maker.

2.7

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

AFEIRBIEI AR A A) o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year
end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss.

Foreign exchange gain and loss that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within “finance
costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other gains/(losses) —
net”.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

J all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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POLICIES (continued)

28 ME -BERSZE (&) 2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the
case of leasehold improvements and certain leased plant

EeRE (HNREHE) : and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

BF 204 Buildings 20 years
HEEE 22109 Leasehold improvements 2-10 years
KM RETEE 5&10F Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
PAERAE 3E5F Office equipment 3-5 years
T 28 7210 Machinery 7-10 years
B VeSS Motor vehicles 4-5 years
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.4.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes (note 9).

customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. These costs are
amortised over 3 years.

(iiij) Acquired computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5
years.
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210k eRMEERE 2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
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Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.11 Other financial assets

(i)  Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement category:

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

PR 1 7E © contractual terms of the cash flows.
AEEERERZEEEN The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
¥BEAEEREEBRRE only when its business model for managing those

B

assets changes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.110ther financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There is one measurement category into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Other financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see note
3.1 for further details.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
where the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

2.13 Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

e SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 30
to 90 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
and other receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. See note 12 for further information about the
Group's accounting for trade and other receivables and
note 3.1 for a description of the Group's impairment
policies.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (note 15).
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 to 90 days of recognition. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabilities for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave
that are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. These
obligations are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience
of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using
market yields at the end of the reporting period
of high-quality corporate bonds with terms and
currencies that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as
a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or 10ss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position
if the Group does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
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2.21 Employee benefits (Ccontinued)
(iiij) Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the PRC, the Group is required to contribute
an amount to certain retirement benefit schemes
based on approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for
the year of those employees in the PRC. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of those employees of
the Group. Contributions to these retirement benefits
schemes are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as incurred.

2.22 Provisions
Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

AFEIRBIEI AR A A) o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.23 Revenue recognition

(i) Sales of goods — Apparel Supply Chain

Servicing Business

The Group manufactures and sells a wide range of
woven wear, cut-and-sewn knitwear and sweater
knitwear products to a number of owners or agents
of global reputable brands. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the wholesaler has full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
wholesaler’'s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and
either the wholesaler has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(M)

AFEIRBIEI AR A A) o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Sales of goods - Apparel Supply Chain
Servicing Business (Continued)

The products are sometimes sold with volume
discounts and customers have a right to return faulty
products in the wholesale market. Revenue from
these sales is based on the price specified in the
sales order, net of the estimated volume discounts
and returns at the time of sale. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the
discounts and returns, using the expected value
method, and revenue is only recognised to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. The volume discounts are assessed based
on anticipated annual purchases. A refund liability
(included in trade and other payables) is recognised
for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales made until the end of the
reporting period. No significant element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made with a
credit term of 30 to 90 days, which is consistent with
market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

2.24 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.
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(i) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

. the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.25 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or loss
when the right to receive payment is established.

2.26 Leases

As explained in note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee.
The new policy is described below and the impact of the
change is disclosed in note 2.2.

until 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group, as lessee, had substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership were classified as
finance leases (note 7). Finance leases were capitalised
at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, were included in other short-term and
long-term payables. Each lease payment was allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost
was charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases was depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.
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Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases (note 30).
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date
at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lesseg, it has elected not
to separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by certain subsidiaries at Hong Kong, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Low-value assets comprise small offices and
apartments.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (note 20). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of
adopting the new leasing standard.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the Group, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.
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Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 24 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

3 BXERER 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 BEEREREE 3.1 Financial risk factors
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The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

(@) Market risk
(1) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(@)
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Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency. For
group companies with Renminbi (‘/RMB") as
their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect of HK$. For
group companies with US dollars (“USD") as
their functional currency, foreign exchange
risk arises primarily with respect of HKS$. For
group companies with HK$ as their functional
currency, foreign exchange risk arises primarily
with respect to RMB. The Group manages its
foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.

The Group has investments in the PRC, whose
net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group's investments in
the PRC is managed primarily through dividends
paid outside the PRC.



iR ORI i = b 5t
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 HERBRERE#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
31 MBERBREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@ wHEEE (&) (a) Market risk (Continuead)
) SMNERE (&) () Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

g Exposure
AEBMPREHREER The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk
B HNES [ B i B (LAY at the end of the reporting period, expressed in
TCHR) AT HK$, was as follows:

R-E-AE+-A=1-H RZE-NE+=-A=t—-H
As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018
AR¥ EY Het AEH i At

RMB usb Others RMB usD Others
TER TRT TER FETL FEL FET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BeRH4ZEY  Cashand cashequivalents 60,655 39,862 549 78,560 8,713 3

ERERF K
ER e Trade and other receivables 116,266 66,071 1,334 90,516 9,507 2,602

FERRAR
HiEMFE  Tedeand other payables 184,309 7,323 64 197,272 4,863 =
BITRER Bank borrowings - - - 3,253 = =
RER RN S Amounts recognised in profit or loss
FAUTERNEES During the year, the following foreign-exchange
EREEANER: related amounts were recognised in profit or

loss:

BE+t-A=1t—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—2-h¥ —FT-N\F

2019 2018
TR THET
HK$'000 HK$'000

stAHEAMURES (B58)  Net foreign exchange losses
—FEMELEEFE  included in other gains/(losses)
(F§7E21) - net (note 21) (10) (1,068)
AR E KA INE Exchange losses on foreign
ERELEE (K5524)  currency borrowings included
in finance costs (note 24) (264) (4,401)

FRARBETERATEA  Total net foreign exchange losses
HRHFESLEEAE  recognised in profit before
income tax for the year (274) (5,469)
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3 WBEREEE

3.1 BHEABEE (&)
(a) HmHEE (&)
) SMNERE (&)
BRRE
WmERAR ASEN
AR/ ETERDEE
BRI BB T
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RZE—h&E+=A
Zt—H WMARBR
BB/ F1E2.2%
mET A B B4
e B FERBREER
|l | - A
231,000 L (ZZE—N
FMAREEBLE
B/ FHEL9% T Aa
HiEHEFTE 8
FRKRBE R ESH
/R 4 491,325,000/
L) EEBHRIEIEMN
EFERNNEEETED
BeRREEEY &
Ui B 3% K E b B U R IB
LA B JEA5F BR 3k e EL b fE
NRBENE XK E
BeoRE HEMERE
MESENHTERES
B 1850 #7439,000
BILT(ZE—\F:
2,419,000 T) £ &
AR ASNES B R B A
EFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(@)
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Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Sensitivity

As shown in the table above, the Group's
exposure with RMB/USD as the functional
currencies causes foreign exchange risk with
respect to HKS.

As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 2.2% against
HK$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$231,000 (2018: if RMB had
weakened/strengthened by 4.9% against
HK$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$1,325,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables that are not
denominated in the entity’s functional currency.
Similarly, the impact on equity of other reserves
would have been approximately HK$439,000
(2018: HK$2,419,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of foreign currency translation on net
assets in the PRC.
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3 HXERERE(E)

3.1 WHERAMEE (&)
(a) HEmEE(E)
() SMEREE (&)

WBE ()
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MRIBHE X &8,/
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TERRAIINERE SR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

()

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Sensitivity (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, if USD had weakened/
strengthened by 0.58% against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$487,000 (2018: if USD had weakened/
strengthened by 0.78% against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$764,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables that
are not denominated in the entity’s functional
currency. Similarly, the impact on equity of
other reserves would have been approximately
HK$13,000 (2018: nil) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of foreign currency translation on net
assets in Cambodia.

cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk
arises mainly from cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings. Cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Cash and
cash equivalents and borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
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3 HXERERE(E)

3.1 MBEBREX )

(@) WEEE ()
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group's
cash and cash equivalents and borrowings
were held at variable rates.

The interest rates and maturities of the Group’s
borrowings are disclosed in note 18.

Management monitors interest rate fluctuations
to ensure that exposure to interest rate risk is
within an acceptable level.

As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates
on HK$-denominated borrowings had been
124 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been approximately
HK$948,000 (2018: if interest rates on HK$-
denominated borrowings had been 42 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$311,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried
at amortised cost, as well as credit exposures
to wholesale customers, including outstanding
receivables.

(1) Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly placed
with reputable financial institutions or with
financial institutions which are controlled by
the government.
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3 B¥ERER )

3.1 MBEREE (&)
(b) EEmE(E)
O EBREE (&)
TREININ_F—NF
T-A=+—BABH

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

()

Risk management (Continued)
The table below shows the bank deposit
balances of the major counterparties with

WENAREETRNE or without external credit ratings as at
ERXGHF ZRITIFER 31 December 2019 as follows:
KRR
R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-h#F —E-N\F
2019 2018
TER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEENREEFHKB  Counterparties with
REHE* external credit rating*
Aa Aa1l 160 162
Aa2 Aa2 - 256,266
Aa3 Aa3 115,614 19,092
A1l A1l 30,419 44,770
A2 A2 3,624 13,143
A3 A3 5,205 4,478
155,022 337,911
WEIMREEFTHRB  Counterparties without
REHE external credit rating
@A EEIRTT  Commercial banks in rural areas 14,260 7,385
FHERS Cash on hand 493 883
RekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 169,775 346,179

* EEFARNENTER
B

e This is sourced from Moody's

3R o ANNUAL REPORT2019 125



RO TSR MY T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 HXERERE(E)

3.1 BHEABEE (&)
(b) FEmEE (&)
) EEEE(E)

i #t 3% X5 P & E & ¥
A RIS (E RS AT AR
90 el 4B 98 3L R AR -
VB 4% I S E B P R =
EZXR(GHREPMY
Bk BELRLE
it B &) o @ 5l & B R
BRBEFTIRENR
BENAINEETRE
E-HEEBEESTH
EEHEREFPHNEERR
BHERBR-AKEER
REAMBEREEANE
WAL AR EFRMIE
EER HEMERK
RAE R 2 IR EEE
Bt e

Gy H7F
BLEB o FE YR FRm
RNEFEATREERS W%
EERBREAESE
ANHER - HFHF &
BERWMEEZ AEE
BOa] fg Uk o

(i) EEEERE
52145 17 15 ) B M B 302
FRNEHEE A
R-MBERBELEFRE
W1 IN/E R T B S 1R
ok 5% 8 9%k # 7 1 17
% - B B 1A A 9 3t
TEK-

& 5 R R
AEEERAEEYE®R
EEBEIFENELT
FAEBRBEEER
HE B R E A
EHIFRMERRE-

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(@)

()

(i)
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Risk management (Continued)

If wholesale customers are independently
rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if
there is no independent rating, risk control
assesses the credit quality of the customer,
taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk
limits are set based on internal or external
ratings in accordance with limits set by the
board. The compliance with credit limits by
wholesale customers is regularly monitored by
line management. The Group applies the HKFRS
9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables.

Security

For some trade receivables the Group may
obtain security in the form of guarantees,
deeds of undertaking or letters of credit which
can be called upon if the counterparty is in
default under the terms of the agreement.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables for sales of inventory are
subject to the expected credit loss model. While
cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.
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3 HXERERE(E)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 36
months before 31 December 2019 or 1 January
2019 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.

Trade receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure
to make contractual payments for a period of
greater than 180 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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3.1 MBREBEE (&)
(b) EEmE(E)
(i) EREERE (&)

FEMBR R (48)
AEEFEFRERR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales of goods to the top five customers
constituted approximately HK$794,768,000,
representing 71.1% of the Group’s revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$803,528,000, representing 93.6%). The top
five trade receivable balances accounted for
approximately HK$100,028,000, representing
56.5% of the gross trade receivable balances
as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
HK$81,583,000, representing 91.4%). Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise
such credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables.

Net impairment losses on financial assets
recognised in profit or loss

During the vyear, the following losses were
recognised in profit or loss in relation to
impaired financial assets:

BEt-A=t—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NF —E-N\F

2019 2018
FER TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

TEEERMERIEFE Netimpairment losses
on financial assets
—EBRFE B EE  — movement in loss allowance
=g for trade receivables 7,258 1,331

BWOE B EFE YN
7,258,000 Tt (=&
—J\4F : 1,331,000/ 7T )
HEFSGHEENEI
HIEHBE (BT
12) e 5T AR IE R LY
6,101,000 T B FRNE
BERGINRPELMNE
R-EREH2ERE
518 -

(c) mBEZmE
EENRPDESRREER
KEZHTAERENRS
EEVMURERARHNEE
REBEESHAELRE
THHMEE-AEENLE
EBMEESRRITEER
HAREEES -

(c)

Net impairment losses of approximately
HK$7,258,000 (2018: HK$1,331,000) related
to receivables arising from contracts with
customers (see note 12). Included in the
amount, approximately HK$6,101,000 was due
to bad debts arised for an overseas customer
went into a liquidation during the year and thus
a full impairment loss was made.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due. The Group finances its working
capital requirements through a combination of funds
generated from operations and bank borrowings.
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3 HBXERERESEE) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
31 MBEERBRREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) mEBELRERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

TERBEADEEHAZ S A The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
SECZENTESRBENS financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
B EIHAAE B 5 AT based on their contractual maturities.
XPERSBHREHKR The amounts disclosed in the table are the
BRI ERME-MN12E AR contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
B AR SR R within 12 months equal their carrying balances as
ERTETELTEK- the impact of discounting is not significant.

—-£Z R
EMABRNSNINA IR-F MER iR asr
Contractual maturities of Lessthan Between1 Between 2

financial liabilities 1year and2years and 5 years Total
TET TET TET TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZ-h&E+=-A=+-8 At 31 December 2019

Fi4 Non-derivatives

RITIEE (M318()) Bank borrowings (note 18(a)) 91,545 - - 91,545
EEFEHA Interest payments on borrowings 646 - - 646
MEAE (M) Lease liabilities (note 7(a)) 9,352 3,803 5,512 18,667
HEABMENR Interest payment on lease liabilities 585 358 197 1,140
ERERREMEM TR Trade and other payables* 242,281 = = 242,281
@t Total 344,409 4,161 5,709 354,279

RZE-NE+=-A=+—-H At 31 December 2018

EENES Non-derivatives
RITEE (TRERERE) Bank borrowings (excluding
(BH7E18(3)) finance leases) (note 18(a)) 87,253 - - 87,253

BEAREEE (F:180) Finance lease liabilities (note 18(0)) 328 327 479 1,134

EEFBRT Interest payments on borrowings 151 = = 151

ERERREMEMN T Trade and other payables* 214,604 = = 214,604

@zt Total 302,336 327 479 303,142

& TEEEMERBIE - g Excluding other taxes payable.

Mk: RITEEFNEDRER - Note: The interest on bank borrowings is calculated by applying the
—NFRZZF-NF+=ZA applicable interest rates on borrowings as at 31 December
=t+—BNEERERME 2019 and 2018 over the period up to their respective
HEHZAMIHA M- maturity dates. The interest on lease liabilities is calculated
HEABMNEBDRER=-F by applying the applicable interest rates on lease liabilities as
—hWEF+ZA=+—HWHEE at 31 December 2019 over the period up to their respective
BERERAMNEGFEZERR maturity dates.

WEIH B IEHR -
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3 BERRERE#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

32 EXERER 3.2 capital risk management

AEBENERNEERRREH:
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BEMRE S M ATEES
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EWHEME R
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AEBREBERELRERLEAN
EATRAED] — B b RIL B
FER SRR E B FEE
REMBEIRRERRHERERAE
BEABERRERAEFEEYE
o

BELERTDETHLAGE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:

° safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern,
so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholers, and

° maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated at net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings and lease liabilities as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position,
less cash and cash equivalents.

The gearing ratio is calculated as follows:

R+=—HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF

—E-N\F
2018
FHT
HK$'000

2019
FE T
HK$'000

BERHEAERE Total borrowings and lease
(MIE18K27) liabilities (note 18 and 7) 110,212 88,319
REE NMELZEY (Mi314)  Less: cash and cash equivalents
(note 14) (169,775) (346,179)
FIR SRR Net cash position (59,563) (257,860)
e AaRE Total equity 312,628 292,537
BERE Gearing ratio TEAN/A TEAN/A
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents, and short-term liabilities, including trade
and other payables, current borrowings and current
lease liabilities, approximate their fair values due to their
short-term maturities.

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purpose
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to
the Group for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(@) Current and deferred income taxes
Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at
each reporting date.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in note 3.

Fair value of the machinery and customer
relationships at the date of business
combination

The fair value of the machinery and customer relationships
acquired through business combination is determined by
using valuation techniques.

Estimation of goodwill impairment

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. For the current reporting
period, the recoverable amount of cash-generating unit
(“CGU") was determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions. The calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact

of possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in
note 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 WHEEkoHBER 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) W= (a) Revenue
HE_FT-NEF+A=1+—HL Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
FEBROWZENT 2019 is as follows:

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—B-hE BN\

2019 2018

FET FHBT

HK$'000 HK$'000

PR 5% {4 58 AR TS 2 75 Apparel Supply Chain Servicing Business 1,117,035 858,343

fREZE XS Apparel Retail Business - =
MEREBERERER Property Investment and

Development Business - -

1,117,035 858,343
R+t=BA=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-hE —ZT—N\F
2019 2018
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

£ A 5% 14 e 8 AR 7S 5 7K Contract liabilities related to Apparel

BENEHNEBE Supply Chain Servicing Business 2,926 2,569
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5 WmkoEBER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(b) EEEFER (b) Information about major customers
RE MR AEE W ZT10%3 A ERE Revenue from the major customers, which amounted to
ZEFMRESETINT 10% or more of the Group's revenue, is set out below:

BE+t-A=1t—-RLHEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—-h#F —ZT—N\%F

2019 2018

F#&x FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EPEA Customer A 443,837 505,681

%FB Customer B 107,319 141,234

551,156 646,915

(c) oBEHR (c) Segment information

BEIREENAEE AN IR E AFTHE Management reviews the Group's internal reporting
KR HEER- BEEEREHRE in order to assess performance and allocate resource.
EEFREMBUERRBRATERN Management has determined the operating segments
NEmEMETELE D - based on the internal reports reviewed by the chairman of

the Board that are used to make strategic decisions.

EEENERERBAE (BER Management assesses the performance of the Group from
EEMRYERERER)FER a product and service perspective which included apparel
SENRB-BE_T-NF+= products and property investment and development.
A=+—RHLEE FrEBEZER During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was
E e AR TS T o principally engaged in Apparel Supply Chain Servicing
Business.
ERERBHLCARKCEERENG Management assesses the performance of the operating
HhEES ORI WO T X segments based on a measure of adjusted operating profit
A EHABRCEERNTEAR or loss which in certain respects, as explained in the table
RETHEBRNNEGE M BRRL below, is measured differently from operating profit or
gEZ Hthilas (BE) —F loss in the consolidated financial statements. Other gains/
B BMERTFRBERFAEHBAIY (losses) — net, finance costs — net and income tax expense
HER WARDRELEDEL are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to

operating segments.
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5 WHERDAER (&)

() »HER (&)
DHEETRBEME BERR
B ERREE BREE BE.
78 18 YRR R B L At B R IR
BNRE KReELRSEEY-
RETBREELCHAEE

NHAEEERERAB KETE
BAPERBE AHHERENRE
EHRIBRE-

BE_Z-AF+-A=t—HLt
FENDEBES:

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) Segment information (Continuead)
Segment assets consist primarily of properties, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets, goodwill,
inventories, trade and other receivables, prepayments
and cash and cash equivalents. They exclude deferred tax
assets.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They
exclude unallocated borrowings, current tax liabilities and
deferred tax liabilities.

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2019:

PR it e i R  WERER
R 7 37 ZEXK BREW
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and

Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business Total
TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AHRERKGINGEFH  Segment revenue and revenue

gy from external customers 1,117,035 - - 1,117,035
NPEE Segment results 43,162 - - 43,162
Hiozs— 558 Other gains - net 176
BEMTFE Finance costs - net (9,528)
Bk BT /5 B4 A A1 Profit before income tax 33,810
FBRAY Income tax expense (7,161)
FREF Profit for the year 26,649
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5 WaERkoEER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(c) 2TER (&) (c) Segment information (Continued)
FFAGEEEREREM S IR Other segment items included in the consolidated
B: statement of comprehensive income:

PRt 5% 4t pE 3 k%  MERER
R 5% ZEXK BREK
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and

Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business Total
TET TER TET TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

nE BEREENE Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 11,466 = = 11,466
TREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 13,333 - - 13,333
EFEESH Amortisation of intangible assets 3,256 - - 3,256
BERERE Allowance for inventory impairment 1,447 - - 1,447
RERE Allowance for doubtful debts 7,258 = - 7,258
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5 WaRkoIPER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(c) ZWESR(#&)
R-B-NAF+_A=1t—B85

(c) Segment information (Continuead)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019

WEELRABWT are as follows:
iR 2 4t P 58 MERER
RIEEE BRESEEK BRER
Property
Apparel Investment
Supply Chain Apparel and
Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business Unallocated Total
TER TET TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LEEE Total assets 698,446 - - 1,884 700,330
BEEH Total liabilities 267,885 - - 119,817 387,702

BE-_FT—)/\F+-A=1t—HL
FENDEBESA:

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2018:

R g 41 P 6
RERE RETERE

NERER
BRER
Property

Investment
Apparel and
Retail Development

Apparel

Supply Chain
Servicing

138

DERERRBIMBRPH

Segment revenue and revenue

Business
TR
HK$'000

Total
TART
HK$'000

Business Business
TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

e from external customers 858,343 - - 858,343
NEEE Segment results 37,656 - - 37,656
HiEBE - 38 Other losses - net (968)
BEMTFE Finance costs - net (8,687)
BRI AR Profit before income tax 28,001
FBRAY Income tax expense (5,779
FRg Profit for the year 22222
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5 WHEEkoHBERE) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(c) 2HTER (&) (c) Segment information (Continued)
HAGATEWE RN EH D 28 Other segment items included in the consolidated
B: statement of comprehensive income:

PRt % {4t pE 98 k%  MERER
PR % % BEEK BREK
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and

Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business Total
THT TER THT TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

nE BERRERE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 3,482 - - 3,482
B EESH Amortisation of intangible assets 265 = = 265
BEEERERE Reversal of allowance for
inventory impairment (2,459) - - (2,459)
PN Allowance for doubtful debts 1,331 = = 1,331
R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H8D The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 were
HEERBENAT: as follows:

PR 5% {4t pE 4 k% MERER
PR % % % BEXK BREK
Property

Apparel Investment

Supply Chain Apparel and

Servicing Retail Development
Business Business Business  Unallocated Total
TET TET TER TBT TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EEBE Total assets 608,314 - - 2,364 611,178

BB Total liabilities 219,598 = = 99,043 318,641
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6. M¥ BMERRE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BT HEXE  HARKE BOERE #e
Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor

Buildings improvements fixtures equipment Machinery vehicles
FEL TEL TAL THL TAT THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

R=B-NF-F-8 At 1January 2018

KA Cost 1,357 14,945 1437 7,406 35,939 7,209 68313
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (191 (12,100 (1,429) (6,425) (27731) (5,847) (53723)
FEFE Net book amount 1,166 2,845 8 981 8,208 1,382 14,590
HE-Z-N\F Year ended 31 December 2018

+ZR=t-HLEE
FUREFE Opening net book amount 1,166 2,845 8 981 8,208 1,382 14,590
ERE® Exchange differences (52) (70) - (37) (362) (30) (551)
RE Additions = 30 3 24 695 1,619 2571
et Disposals - - - - - (245) (245)
FERZ (KF290a) Depreciation charge (note 29(a)) (61 (1,409) 1) (276) (1,115 (610) (3482)
FRERFE Closing net book amount 1,053 1,39 - 892 7426 2,116 12,883
R=E-N§F At 31 December 2018

+=B=+-H
[ Cost 1,294 14,561 1414 7,404 35,165 7,197 67,035
2ithE Accumulated depreciation (247) (13,165) (1414 6512) (27,739) (5,081) (54,152)
REFE Net book amount 1,053 1,39 - 892 7,426 2,116 12,883
HE-Z-NF Year ended 31 December 2019

+-AZ+-ALFE
FUREFE Opening net book amount 1,053 1,396 - 892 7,426 2,116 12,883
SIEHBUREBAMERAE  Adjustment for change in

(Fi32.2) accounting policy (note 2.2) - - - - - (1,234) (1,234)

BENENRETE Restated opening net

hook amount 1,053 1,396 - 892 7,426 882 11,649
ERESR Exchange differences (22) (66) (8) (15) (153) (21) (285)
BE Additions - 3,847 984 560 774 541 6,706
WEMBAR (H531)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 31) - 2,600 1,393 196 53,290 255 57,734
e Disposals - (115) (10) (157) (463) (18) (763)
HERL (FH96) Depreciation charge (note 29(a)) (54) (2,705) (917) (343) (6,965) (482) (11,466)
FREAFE Closing net book amount 977 4,957 1,442 1,133 53,909 1,157 63,575
R=B-1§ At 31 December 2019

+=A=+-H

[ Cost 1,266 16,428 3,083 6,248 83,967 5,475 116,467
2ithe Accumulated depreciation (289) (11,471) (1,641) (5,115) (30,058) (4,318) (52,892)
REFE Net book amount 977 4,957 1,442 1,133 53,909 1,157 63,575
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6. M BEKRE )

RERE 2 ERSERIFHNEFRX

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

@)

Depreciation expense has been charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—B-nE  —FN\F

2019 AONES]

FET FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

58 A AN Cost of sales 6,883 1,841
THHEX Administrative expenses 4,583 1,641
11,466 3,482

AAKE-—F—N\F

RZBE-NFE+A=+—H A
ERETIHIERESE (AEEHER

(0)

Leased assets — 2018

As at 31 December 2018, motor vehicles included the
following amounts where the Group was a lessee under a

MEREZABRAN ELZHBEHZD finance lease (refer to note 7 for further details):
MMiE7)
R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —E-)N\F
2019 2018
FTHExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
MA-mEREE R Cost — capitalised finance leases 1,406 1,406
25T E Accumulated depreciation (453) (172)
BRANFEE Net book value 953 1,234

R-E—NE—A—A% BEE
ERGAMBRIEANEIIEL 2
5l (EE MK ) - BB EH B
BB 7 FE LM 22

AEBRBENATHERERE R
HRZEAE AN F—=0%F-
MEERE BERERBNAE
H -

From 1 January 2019 onwards, leased assets are presented
as a separate line item in the consolidated statement of
financial position (see note 7). Refer to note 2.2 for details
about the changes in accounting policy.

The Group leases various motor vehicles under
non-cancellable finance lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 and 5 years. After the lease term, the
ownership of the assets lies with the Group.

3R o ANNUALREPORT2019 141



RO R SE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 MHE 7
AHT R EREBEARRAANEES

LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a

o lessee.

(@) REREPBRRRERDHHE

RAMBHARERIIRT AT S IAA
HEB B FIE

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

R=B—h%E
+=A=+-8
As at

31 December
2019

FHR
HK$'000

1 January
2019*
T
HK$'000

FHEEE Right-of-use assets

s Buildings 17,563 21,655

A Motor vehicles 953 1,234
18,516 22,889

HEAE Lease liabilities

mE Current 9,352 10,868

IERED Non-current 9,315 11,853
18,667 22,721

e RBAFE AEEEBRRERES g In the previous year, the Group only recognised lease assets and

BEFERF7RBESEA RE
HEIZHEEHNEEEEREE
BE-AHAERYE BFERR
EIREHABERAREREN—1
Do BRR_ZE-NF-A—-BEH
BRI B EERE 16K RN
- F2HME22

HE-_Z—NF+ZA=+—
BIEFE AEFTHBEELNAR
21,595,000 L ZERBEEFH
18,288,000/ LB BEBKE T
LATERR (MIFE31) ©

HE-_ZTZ—NF+ZA=+—
HEFE REFTAEEENR
12,636,000% 7T Ty & R B & &
HRERBMEE-

142

lease liabilities in relation to leases that were classified as “finance
leases” under HKAS 17 Leases. The assets were presented in
property, plant and equipment and the liabilities as part of the
Group's borrowings. For adjustments recognised on adoption of
HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, please refer to note 2.2.

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31 December 2019 were approximately HK$21,595,000.
Approximately HK$18,288,000 of these additions are
recognised through the business combination (note 31).

Disposals of the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31 December 2019 were approximately HK$12,636,000,
which was incurred as a result of relocation of plants in the
PRC and Hong Kong.
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7 ME#) 7  LEASES (continued)
(b) REEZHWRBRBEIANRE (b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
FREEERERYTT AT SIEH The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
HERBENNIE shows the following amounts relating to leases:

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—hEF —E—)\%F

2019 2018
B 5E FER THET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

FRAEEENERX Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets

gF Buildings 13,052 -
RE Motor vehicles 281 =
13,333 -

FERSE (5F ABE AL A) Interest expense (included in
finance cost) 24 1,085 57

S EHEAMAMMAY  Expense relating to short-term

(GTASEER A X leases (included in cost of
THAX) sales and administrative
expenses) 22 903 =
MEBEEEEMAE Expense relating to leases of
(WER EXF A low-value assets that are not

HHHEEE)EBEN shown above as short-term
M (GTATTHAEX) leases (included in

administrative expenses) 22 117 76

HE_ZT—-NF+ZA=+—H The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended
HEFE HERESRLBEAD 31 December 2019 was approximately HK$13,975,000.
13,975,000/ 7T °

(c) XEENHETHRNMHEH (c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these
ETETTER are accounted for
AEBERAZENRERSE®|A The Group leases various offices and vehicles. Rental
B HEANNHEHABEREEAR— contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5
ERFo years.
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8. B|ILEE 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B et EFB% @t
Computer Customer
software relationships Total
FHEL FHL FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE—-—NF—H—H As at 1 January 2018
B AR Cost 1,699 - 1,699
ESE 1 Accumulated amortisation (1,024) = (1,024)
REFEE Net book amount 675 = 675
BHEZZT-N\F Year ended 31 December 2018
+TZRA=T—HLEEE
FYREFE Opening net book amount 675 - 675
BN ERE Exchange difference 31 - 31
B (KsE290)) Amortisation (note 29(a)) (265) - (265)
FHRETFEE Closing net book amount 379 = 379
RZF—-N\F+=-A=+—H Asat31December 2018
AR Cost 1,621 - 1,621
BETEH Accumulated amortisation (1,242) = (1,242)
RHEFEE Net book amount 379 - 379
BE_Z—NF Year ended 31 December 2019
TZA=T—HLEEE
FUEEEE Opening net book amount 379 - 379
NE Additions 236 - 236
U BB P B A A (BTEE3T) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 31) - 12,000 12,000
EHZERE Exchange difference (9) - (9)
B (M%) Amortisation (note 29(a)) (256) (3,000) (3,256)
FHREEFE Closing net book amount 350 9,000 9,350
R-ZE—hF+-A=+—H8 Asat31December 2019
B AR Cost 1,822 12,000 13,822
BRI Accumulated amortisation (1,472) (3,000) (4,472)
REVFE Net book amount 350 9,000 9,350
(i) EFBE (i) customer relationships
BPMREBEIBREESEPHEIE The customer relationships were acquired as part of a
(BB LHEWFE3) - FERUKE business combination (see note 31 for details). They are
AR A FETUERREBRE recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition and
SHMEET A EAFHRNETER are subsequently amortised on a straight-line based on the
CRENNEEEREEHNY- timing of projected cash flows of the contracts over their
estimated useful lives.
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9. ME 9 GOODWILL

2]
Goodwill

FET
HK$'000

BE-Z—-hF+=-ZBA=1+—BHLEFE Year ended 31 December 2019

FHREFE Opening net book amount =
U B B BB A &) (M 3E31) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 31) 134,035
FRIEMFE Closing net book amount 134,035
R=ZE—NAF+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2019
B 7R Cost 134,035
Z2ERE Accumulated impairment =
BREFE Net book amount 134,035
(a) AEREANR (@) Impairment test for goodwill
EEETDRSEERYHEET Goodwill is monitored by management at the level of
BER o Splendid Gains Group.
TR ESPREAEENRESE The following table sets out the key assumptions for the
EEBEM s FERE: CGU that has significant goodwill allocated to them:
BEEER
Splendid
Gains Group
—E-AFE 2019
Was (FIEEY) Revenue (% annual growth rate) 1.0
FEEEME ((HES) Budgeted gross margin (% of revenue) 17.0
BRILATEEIRE (%) Pre-tax discount rate (%) 14.5

3R o ANNUALREPORT2019 145



VW=

N

B 15 ek = MY o E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9.

146

BmE &)

(@) BEREMNR (&)
EEERNITABENEKE Bt
BEEFERZMER:

(b)

B

Assumption

Wt (FIBRE%)

Revenue (% annual growth rate)

BEENEX (H%E)

Budgeted gross margin (% of revenue)

BrAZATEAIRE (%)
Pre-tax discount rates

FERRULBBHNE

fi 51 55 PR R (LT SR M0 SF S R
ERERER T —NF+=A
= — B i 5HE1.0% (0%
31.0%) 4 % B A 1 R E
10,643,000 7T ©

matEEREEMEANEEER
EREBENR_ZE—ANE+=-A
=+ —H&EEFE1.0% (£16.0%
fM3E17.0% ) - AEBBERREL
14,163,0007 7t

i 3R & 7 & T8 R BT FE A A BR B A
R EREEENHS1.0% (5
15.5%1M 3E14.5% ) » A& B /A TR
(8 #95,921,0007 7T ©

GOODWILL (continued)

(a) Impairment tests for goodwill (Continuea)
Management has determined the values assigned to each
of the above key assumptions as follows:

EEEEMALZE
Approach used to determine the value

hTEBAMATHFEERE - ANRBRATRERE EREHT
HERNTAHERE -

Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period.
It is determined based on past performance, management’s
expectations of market development.

RAEBABATFEMNBERENES L - EDNREBEReEELS
R RERRRERESARRNTEIRET -

Average margin as a percentage of revenue over the five-year
forecast period. It is determined based on the CGU's past
performance and management’s expectations for the future.

REREAIR GEAE TR AL EMTEERA BT TR -
Reflect specific risks relating to the CGU and the countries in
which it operates.

(b) Impact of possible changes in key
assumptions
If the annual growth rate of revenue used in the
value-in-use calculation had been 1.0% lower than
management’'s estimates as at 31 December 2019 (0%
instead of 1.0%), the Group would have had to recognise
an impairment of approximately HK$10,643,000.

If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use
calculation had been 1.0% lower than management’s
estimates as at 31 December 2019 (16.0% instead of
17.0%), the Group would have had to recognise an
impairment of approximately HK$14,163,000.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections had been 1.0% higher than management’s
estimates (15.5% instead of 14.5%), the Group would
have had to recognise an impairment of approximately
HK$5,921,000.
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10 #E 10 INVENTORIES
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRA Raw materials 35,464 39,367
EE G Work in progress 10,997 22,434
SUPK i Finished goods 28,399 44,203
74,860 106,004
BT ERERE Less: provision for impairment of
inventories (2,941) (4,592)
71,919 101,412
(@ BEREIBERE (a) Assigning costs to inventories
FEERITE B AR i T 15K The costs of individual items of inventory are determined
KETE ° using weighted average costs.
(b) REZPEIANNKE (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

BE_FT-NF+-_A=1+—8H
LEERARAINEFEERD
890,352,000 7T (ZF — )\ F :
731,256,000/ 7T ) ° 7% % I A

GFEREBEY A1,447,000% 7T
(ZZ—N\F: B 122,459,000
BIL) REREREBE=ZFT—N
F+-_A=t+—RHILtFEERAH
Yo WEAGRAEEER RO
ERA] A

FAAEBECHEEBAERAL
3,098,000 7T + I B i 18 X Hi B 1
T AR -

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$890,352,000 (2018: HK$731,256,000). These were
included in cost of sales.

Allowance for inventory impairment amounted to
approximately HK$1,447,000 (2018: reversal of allowance
of HK$2,459,000). These were recognised as an expense
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and included
in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

During the vyear, the Group disposed of obsolete goods
amounted to approximately HK$3,098,000 and wrote off
against the impairment charge provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 RENEIHWEMIE 1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Rt+t=-—HB=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-AEF —ET—)\F

2019 2018
FE T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000

SREE Financial assets

IR AT EN S BEE  Financial assets at amortised cost

JEWBE R R M EYEIE  Trade and other receivables 12 189,656 109,956
RehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 169,775 346,179
359,431 456,135
R+=HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E—h#F —FE-N\F
2019 2018
FTHExT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
sRaE Financial liabilities
HEHEK AT ENEE Liabilities at amortised cost
FERBR N R H b FEAT 28> Trade and other payables* 17 242,281 214,604
B Borrowings 18 91,545 88,319
HEG G Lease liabilities** 7 18,667 =
352,493 302,923
& ELHEE b A B IE © 5 Excluding other taxes payable.

> AHEHRREDFECFE F2HME
2.2.

AEBHEBEEHERIANSERRR
BT FE3RT s o S IR A5 B R B & B K
O/t BemEENREE-

148 msEmmizRARAT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS

A See note 2.2 for details about the impact from changes in accounting
policies.

The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 FBEWERR R H KRR IE 12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
R+t=BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —ZT—N\F
2019 2018
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JE Y BR 3R Trade receivable 176,935 89,225
H th fE U 5K IE Other receivables 12,734 16,405
R ER Bills receivable - 5,912
189,669 111,542
R E R Less: provision for impairment
— FEUBR 5K — Trade receivable (13) (1,340)
—E fh Y 5RIE - Other receivables - (246)
189,656 109,956
RZE—NFERZZE-NF+=A As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group's trade receivable
—t+—H FAEENERERETERE are mainly due from customers with good credit history and low
FEERHRIRER L ERENES - default rate.
AEEERTEPHNEERBATE RIOAE Credit terms granted to customers by the Group are usually of 30
WH BXrEXRAEEZHRIRER to 90 days and which are mainly due from customers with good
LEREERATEF-R_T—ALF+_A credit history and low default rate. As at 31 December 2019, the
=+ —H BEREFREZZEHNE ageing analysis of the trade receivable based on invoice date is
BommT : as follows:
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
30BA Within 30 days 79,219 42,543
31£90H 31 to 90 days 87,702 24,955
91£180H 91 to 180 days 9,822 14,266
Hi®180H Over 180 days 192 7,461
176,935 89,225
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12 BWIRFR E M EWRRE (&)

150

(a)

(b)

WM R EMERRELF
(=]

R B YGR IR S I E - B
RHERGAEEAFEMER-

B 2 B B
RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H0'B
BEEY ERENBURRO R
10,001,000 T (ZE—N\F+ =
A=-+—H:20,387,000% 7T ) ° it
FRUR TS & % ET B3 SR 4E R
ARENBIEP - X RBERRD
FRie o Mran T

(@)

(b)

12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuea)

Fair value of trade and other receivables

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as
their fair values.

Impairment and risk exposure

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of
approximately HK$10,001,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$20,387,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivable is as follows:

R+t=A=+—H

As at 31 December
ZE-hEF —ZT—N\F
2019 2018
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
91£180H 91 to 180 days 9,822 14,266
#8180 H Over 180 days 179 6,121
10,001 20,387

R-ZEB-h&E+A=+—8"
Ji& W B 5K £913,0008 T (ZF — N\
FH+ZA=+—H BERERY
1,340,000/ 7T K H 4t & 5K IR 4
246,00078 7T YA HI &k DA M @ 3 2 &
Y 2 B o % R UG IE M BRER R
#180H

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of
approximately HK$13,000 (31 December 2018: trade
receivables of approximately HK$1,340,000 and other
receivables of approximately HK$246,000) were expected
to be difficult to collect and full provisions were made. The
ageing of these receivables was over 180 days.

ARIRBIEMR AR AT o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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12 BUWERR KR H i B sIE (&) 12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) WERE &) (b) Impairment and risk exposure (Continued)
R IERERENZESHINT Movements of the provision for impairment of receivables

are as follows:

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—B-nE BN\
2019 2018
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F4) At beginning of year 1,586 4,872
REREE (W5E22) Allowance for doubtful debts (note 22) 7,258 1,331
IR 8 A B] U [B] 2 8 U FR B Receivables written-off during
the year as uncollectible (8,831) 4,617)
Fx At end of year 13 1,586
BEENERBREMEAEEEER Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
b & HNEE R B 2 B R R 2 B MY R the Group’s exposure to credit risk and foreign currency
31 risk can be found in note 3.1.
13 ENNE 13 PREPAYMENTS
BR+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December
—B-hE —T-N\F
2019 2018
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERRERMARE - NITE- Prepayments for purchases of
NEEERPSE N raw materials, processing fees,
consumables and insurance 41,620 28,005
AR ESAE Prepayments for acquisition of
Splendid Gains Group - 10,000

41,620 38,005
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14 RERREZEEY 14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-AF —ZE-)N\F
2019 2018
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RTINS Cash at bank 169,282 345,296
FHERSE Cash on hand 493 883
169,775 346,179
15 BRAERBRGORE 15 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
FIRBENEERAT Ordinary shares issued and fully paid are as follows:
EERYE EER R RE @it
Number of
ordinary Ordinary Share
shares Shares premium Total
THT FHT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-NERZE-N\§ As at 31 December 2019
+-A=+—-H and 2018 600,000,000 60,000 53,441 113,441
RZEBE—hhF+-_A=1+—H FEE The total authorised number of ordinary shares as at
3B A% 48 20 41,200,000,0000% ( =& — N\ 31 December 2019 was 1,200,000,000 (2018: 1,200,000,000) with
£ :1,200,000,0000% ) * & X B £0.17%8 a par value of HK$0.1 per share (2018: HK$0.1 per share).

T(ZE—N\F:ZROIET) -
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16 HitfEME 16 OTHER RESERVES

E S e
Exchange
reserve

EERE
Statutory
reserve
FHL
HK$'000
(Hi=E@)
(note (a))

RHRE
Merger
reserve

THAT
HK$'000
(RI=ED))
(note (b))

BARE
Capital
reserve
TET
HK$'000

HERE
Total
reserves
TET
HK$'000

THAL
HK$'000

R=ZZE-N\E—-HA—H Asat1January 2018 4,398 11,597 2,957 3,872 22,824
R Currency translation difference (3.743) - - - (3,743)
R-E-NE As at 31 December 2018
TZA=t-BK and 1 January 2019
—E-NE-A-H 655 11,597 2,957 3,872 19,081
EHEE Currency translation difference (558) - - - (558)
R-Z-AF As at 31 December 2019
+=A=+-H 97 11,597 2,957 3,872 18,523
(a) EERFE (a) Statutory reserve
MR I5 A B R 0] R A B B A Rl 2R In accordance with the PRC regulations and the Articles of
HMERMER NEEMNFEQARZE Association of the PRC companies, the PRC subsidiaries
R E T RFEIBE RARE of the Group are required to make appropriations from
YE L & A 9 kAT B4R A o BL 2= 0% net profits to the statutory reserve, after offsetting
TEREE - PEELAESHEFNE accumulated losses from prior years, and before profit
SHBEFRENBARNESSE distributions are made to shareholders. The percentages
JE ° of profits to be appropriated to the above funds are
determined by the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries.
AEEEEF B AR R HREF The principal PRC subsidiaries of the Group appropriates
BAREgFRAUGRIERE R4 10% of their net profit as shown in the accounts prepared
FO%BERETFERE BEELHFE under PRC generally accepted accounting principles to
3 B FE & AN50% o VA TE 7 15 1R statutory reserve, until the reserve reaches 50% of the
BARMAERFEEADIKRERE registered capital. Appropriation of the statutory reserve
i o must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
holders.
(b) &BtEE (b) Merger reserve
TEBMNEHBEEABRER S Merger reserve of the Group represented the difference
— M EAFT YN E A A between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
A& AN B FE IR ER E Il IR ANFT BT AR pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2012 over the
ARAHEENZER- nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued

in exchange thereof.
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17 ERAERRRAEMENSKIE 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
R+t=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-hF —E—N\F
2019 2018
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI — BN E = IE Trade payable — due to third parties
(HI3EDb)) (note (b)) 118,094 108,800
FERT R (FFaE()) Bills payable (note (c)) 98,384 87,364
EBErTE Accrued payroll 15,383 9,894
E B 5RE Other payables 10,276 8,546
Hh fE 518 Other taxes payable 4,011 2,425
FE A& 7 38 (M15E32(a) ) Due to related parties (note 32(a)) 144 =
246,292 217,029

(a) ENERMREHMEAREZA (a) Fair value of trade and other payables
FE
R JE 1<) B R R EL i < 50 7E /&8 A2 P The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
ME MEEAERAEEATE considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their
iEIEK short-term nature.

(b) ENERAEBER AEEEBH (b) Trade payable are unsecured. The credit period granted
FEEFEERNEERN F30=90H - by the Group’s principal suppliers ranges from 30 to 90
RZE-NFE+A=+—H0 & days. As at 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of trade
NERIZEZAPNERE DTN payable based on invoice date is as follows:

T
BR+=—BA=+-—H

As at 31 December
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
30BZR Within 30 days 65,851 53,262
31290H 31 to 90 days 37,259 44,050
91%180H 91 to 180 days 5,015 3,638
H@180H Over 180 days 9,969 7,850
118,094 108,800

(c) ENEBEHAEEARNZARMERE (c) The bills payable were guaranteed by companies within the
R-ERBETAREF=EAR Group, which have to be settled within three months from
g o the dates of issue.
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18 B8 18 BORROWINGS
R+=BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —T—)\F
2019 2018
FTHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE Non-current
BEREAE Finance lease liabilities - 770
TE Current
RITEE Bank borrowings 91,545 87,253
BHEREAE Finance lease liabilities - 296
91,545 87,549
EERE Total borrowings 91,545 88,319
5 Representing:
SRITEE (HiE@) Bank borrowings (note (a)) 91,545 87,253
MmEMREERE (MaEb) Finance lease liabilities (note (b)) - 1,066
BEEBE Total borrowings 91,545 88,319
(@) BITEE (a) Bank borrowings
() AEBEEERRATFERE (i)  The Group's bank borrowings are repayable as
+ . 5
ErdE follows:

Rt+t=-—H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-NF —ET—)\F

2019 2018
FTERx T
HK$'000 HK$'000

R—F AR H Within one year 91,545 87,253
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18 B8 (#) 18 BORROWINGS (continued)
(a) S|ITEBE (&) (a) Bank borrowings (Continued)
(i FAARITEETDRZENE (i) All the bank borrowings are at variable interest
R -RZE—NF+A rates. The weighted average effective interest rates
T+ —ANMEFHERF per annum as at 31 December 2019 was 4.84%
FE EB484% (ZF— \F (31 December 2018: 3.60%).

TZA=1+—H:3.60%) °

iy AEBRITEENH X (i) The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to
BRRAREHEHREEBH interest rate changes and the contractual repricing
R—FRN- dates were all within one year.

(b) MEHEEBE - —Z—N\F (b) Finance lease liabilities - 2018
RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—8B 'X& As at 31 December 2018, the Group leased various
SERBER—EZERFRNEROBE motor vehicles with a carrying amount of approximately
THEE A REE A 51,234,000 7T HK$1,234,000 under finance leases expiring within 1 to 5
MEBRAE-RZZT—-N\FE+A years. Finance lease liabilities were included in borrowings
=t+—HAZAMEREEAGHA until 31 December 2018, but were reclassified to lease
EFCBRAFEAEEREN T liabilities on 1 January 2019 upon adoption of the new
—NF—A—BEFNH»BEAHEESR leasing standard. See note 2.2 for further information about
BE-ARHEESHBRER 2 E— the change in accounting policy for leases.

FER - B2HME22 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 & (&)

b MEEEEE-—FT-/N\F

(%)

HREEEENEMERHRED
EHBRETHEAA MHEEAE

EEBRER-

18 BORROWINGS (Continued)

the event of default.

(b) Finance lease liabilities — 2018 (Continued)

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the
leased assets which would be reverted to the lessors in

Rt+t=-—H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF

—E-N\E
2018
TET
HK$'000

2019
FERT
HK$'000

REHES ERE Commitments in relation to
—HEBENFE finance lease liabilities —
minimum lease payments
—FR Within 1 year - 328
—E=RF 110 5 years - 806
- 1,134
REHEMNRRMEMS Future finance charges
on finance leases - (68)
MmEHEBEZRE Present value of finance lease liabilities - 1,066
MEEEAGBEZIREMT:  The present value of finance
lease liabilities is as follows:
—F R Within 1 year - 296
—E=RF 110 5 years - 770
- 1,066
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19 EEHREEERELEHRESE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
LIABILITIES

(a) EZEREBEEE (a) Deferred tax assets

Rt+t=-—H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E—)\F

2019 2018
FE T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000

EHREEUATSEEGYN The balance comprises temporary

TR ERE differences attributable to:
AR Bad debt allowance 3 335
GFERERE Inventory impairment allowance 725 1,110
HtErs Social security 892 694
WRRIETE Decelerated tax depreciation 241 225
) Others 23 =
1,884 2,364
EEREEE: Deferred tax assets:
- 12{8 A R E — Deferred tax assets to be
EIETIEE E recovered within 12 months 728 2,139
- 128 A& W2 - Deferred tax assets to be
R IBEE recovered after 12 months 1,156 225
1,884 2,364
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19 EEHREEEREEHRESE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX

(#&) LIABILITIES (Continuead)
(a) EBELEMBEE (£) (a) Deferred tax assets (Continued)
BEBE GEAERE HE8%2 FERBENE Hif @t
Inventory Decelerated
Bad debt  impairment Social tax
Movements allowance allowance security  depreciation Others Total
THT THT THT THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-E-NE-A-AH As at 1 January 2018 - 1,687 716 255 - 2,658
EREE Tranglation difference (13) 7 - - - )
RBHEEA/ (k) Credited/(charged) to
profit or 10ss 348 (584) 22 (30) - (283)
RZE-NE+ZA=1+-H Asat 31 December 2018 335 1,110 694 225 - 2,364
R-Z2-n&E-B-A As at 1 January 2019 335 1,110 694 225 = 2,364
ERiES Translation difference (1) 6 (6) - (2 3)
REE (k) /3 A (Charged)/credited to
profit or loss (331) (391) 204 16 25 (477)
RZE-AE+=A=1+-H Asat 31 December 2019 3 725 892 241 23 1,884
(b) EEZEHRBEE (b) Deferred tax liabilities

R+=—HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E—-NEF —E—)\F

2019 2018
FExT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000

EHREEUATSEEGYN The balance comprises temporary

RF M ERE differences attributable to:
WRRIEE Decelerated tax depreciation 3,084 =
BENGIEE Assets appraisal increment 1,783 =
4,867 -
EEREEE: Deferred tax liabilities:
-12EARNEERELERIE - Deferred tax liabilities to be
BfE utilised within 12 months 759 =
-12EREBBAELERIE - Deferred tax liabilities to be
Bf&E utilised after 12 months 4,108 =
4,867 -
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19 EEFREESERELEHREBESE 19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX
(%) LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) EEREBERE (&) (b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

BEBIERE BEFMGHEE #et
Decelerated Assets
tax appraisal

Movements depreciation increment Total
FET FET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZE-N\§—-A—-8AK As at 1 January 2018 and
—E-N\f+=B=+—H 31 December 2018 - = =

R-E-hE—HA—H As at 1 January 2019 = = =
U BE BT B A &) (BTE31) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 31) 3,084 2,353 5,437
FTABR Credited to profit or loss - (570) (570)
R-ZE-NIF
+=A=+-H As at 31 December 2019 3,084 1,783 4,867
20 Hfl A 20 OTHER INCOME

BE+-A=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-NE —T—)\F
2019 2018
THExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REFERBENES KA Rental income from subcontractors 1,004 1,661
21 HttWzm (EBE) — 38 21 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET

BE+t-A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December

—B-hE BN\
2019 2018
FTHExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ERUERE Claims from customer

for order cancellation 859 -

LEWE HERRESF Net (losses)/gains on disposal of
(E18) W= F58 property, plant and equipment (635) 80
i 5B 185 58 Net foreign exchange losses (10) (1,068)
H Others (38) 20

176 (968)
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22 BEUHEEEIHAX 22 EXPENSES BY NATURE
BEETHSEKE DENARITERAX Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution costs and
AR DT : administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

BE+=-BA=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—hEF —E—)\F

2019 2018
FEx THET
HK$'000 HK$'000

RS RERREEED

P AR R AR BB R &R
ENNIERERERESR

RE®AFX (KE23)
LA (HE7(b)
B
GFERERE (BERE)
(Pt %29(a))
HEFAX
JIE B B 2
EERBE
KEE
% 2 BN B <&
EIZ R
FEE LIRS
REREE (H5E12)
BEAX
HIERRERAY
BT
Hi

Changes in inventories of finished

goods and work in progress 35,028 39,647
Raw materials and consumables

used, processing fee paid and

merchandise purchased 855,324 691,609
Employee benefit expenses (note 23) 86,932 41,623
Rental expenses (note 7(b)) 1,020 13,087
Transportation expenses 16,313 8,671
Allowance for/(reversal of allowance

for) inventory impairment (note 29(a)) 1,447 (2,459)
Depreciation and amortisation 28,055 3,747
Travelling expenses 6,580 4,762
Entertainment expenses 5,898 3,905
Professional service fees 6,877 3,828
Utilities 4,101 2,932
Auditors’ remuneration

Audit services 3,817 1,868

Non-audit services 376 1,094
Allowance for doubtful debts (note 12) 7,258 1,331
Commission expenses 2,359 -
Repairs and maintenance expenses 1,438 565
Banks charges 1,018 415
Others 11,036 5,723

TERF B

Total cost of sales, distribution costs
and administrative expenses 1,074,877 822,348
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23 EERMMAX 23

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BE+-A=+-RALEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hE —ZT—N\F

2019 2018

FBT FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

T8 & REL Wages, salaries and bonuses 68,358 26,999
EERaREEE T Directors’ and senior

management’s emoluments 12,414 9,825

HEERER A Social security costs 3,574 1,112

&) R BL Welfare and allowances 2,586 3,687

86,932 41,623

HE_ZT-NF+-A=t+—HLFE"
AEBLEARSFALEEMA (ZF
—NFE2B)EF-EENMeC @R
MESIZ DT -REBE-F—NF
ToA=t—HLEFEXMNEHIER (=
T N\F 3B)ALHHEMT :

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the five individuals
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group included
2 (2018: 2) directors. The directors’ emoluments are reflected
in the analysis show in note 34. The emoluments payable to
the remaining 3 (2018: 3) individuals during the year ended
31 December 2019 are as follows:

BE+-A=t-BLFE
Year ended 31 December
—2-hE —T-N\#F

2019 2018
TERT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

HA#F & Ha 2 AR EYWREF  Basic salaries, other allowances and

benefits in kind 4,548 2,384

1B = AR IRET 85k Employer’s contribution to pension
scheme 46 54
4,594 2,438
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23 EERAIMAX (&) 23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continuea)

WIS DR IA T AR R | The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BEt+t-A=1+—-RLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —EF-N\F
2019 2018
A
Number of individuals
RN AR B - Emolument bands:
500,0007% 7t = 1,000,000 7T HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 - 2
1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 1
1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 -
24 BBEWARRAK 24 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—B-hE —ET-N\F
2019 2018
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B A IR A Finance income
—REHRIT M F B U A - Interest income on short-term
bank deposits 1,157 2,016
BhE A Finance costs
—RITIEEMFBERAX — Interest expense on bank borrowings (9,336) (6,245)
-Eff/ENEREEFNER — Interest and finance charges
B paid/payable for lease liabilities (1,085) (57)
— HNEE {5 BB B 18 F 2R - Net exchange losses on foreign
currency borrowings (264) (4,407)
(10,685) (10,703)
BhE K AN F 5 Finance costs - net (9,528) (8,687)
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25 FiEFHEX 25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(@) FREBBAxX (@) Income tax expense

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hfF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIERPRS R Current income tax

—FRREEMSH - PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")
(TR 530 1,070
—BANEH - Hong Kong profits tax 6,609 4,929
7,139 5,999
BEFERLIE (MIEE19) Deferred tax (note 19) (93) 288
TEEH Corporate income tax 7,046 6,287
A Withholding tax 115 (508)
FriSfif > Income tax expense 7.161 5,779

(i) EHEFEH (i) cayman Islands profits tax
RREBEMNEMNRFSE The Company has not been subject to any taxation in
EBiIE- the Cayman Islands.

(i) EEFEH (i) Hong Kong profits tax
BHE_Z—NFERZZE—N Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, for the
FH+ZA=+—BHLFE" year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the profits
BEMNESHMES CEE tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable
2,000,000/ 7T F& & % 4 7 &9 profits is lowered to 8.25% (half of the rate specified
FIS I E T A =825% (& in Schedule 8 to the Inland Revenue Ordinance).
FE R TS AK I B RSP AR B T XK Assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 continue to
2 —3) © 2,000,000/ 7T A £ be subject to the rate of 16.5%.

B FE SR T 5 T I B R B K
16.5% 8
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25 FRIEBiBx (#)

(@ FrSHAx< (&)
(iii) R REFEH

(iv)

v)

BRESBER L AE@2E
B8 A~ 7 2 —Agile Sweater
(Cambodia) Co. LtdB ==
—ARNF—A—HRB;E-ZT
—h&E+=—A=+—81tMWwm
B HEE=ZBREESRRS
B AEBRRBELERN
B AT - AR E B %
WEERFEMBRIANE B
i AR A - R BB B2 32 20% A
TREBMRM B ZERRSH -

B 1 P 15 B
REBE TR B ML
MERCEMSH I ER
v R T R 25%H (=8
— J\5F : 25%) o

& B 7B P 5
REBEEEMRGHEL PEE
AEBEBINEBER QR T
BB BREMBHRALEE
REBENAFEILBRES% (=
T — )\ 5%) ¥ { E o B Y
JB A BREREY B B B TR
i o

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Income tax expense (Continued)

(iir)

(iv)

v)

Cambodia profits tax

Pursuant to the Cambodia tax laws, Agile Sweater
(Cambodia) Co. Ltd, one of the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group, is entitled to preferential
tax treatment with full exemption from Cambodia
corporate income tax for four financial years starting
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2019. However,
in case where future dividend is distributed out of
such profits earned during the four exempted years,
a corporate income tax at a rate of 20% will be
triggered.

PRC CIT

CIT is provided at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on
the assessable profit of entities within the Group
incorporated in the PRC.

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, as there is a tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong where
the Group’s foreign immediate holding companies
are located, a withholding tax on dividends from
subsidiaries in the PRC has been provided for at a
rate of 5% during the year (2018: 5%).
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25 FrEBE (&) 25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(b) FISHEXBFHAE (b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax
expenses
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the Group's entities
in the respective jurisdictions as follows:

N 5= [ BR B A A M B B TR Bl R R
RERRSRERENASE TR
R E I F IR EFENE RS
BommmT:

BE+-A=1+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-N\F

—E-hEF

2019 2018

TET TAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit before income tax 33,810 28,001

B P 15 ¢ A 2t A1)

HERAR S RDAERD
AEBEEEENN

Tax calculated at rates applicable
to profits of the Group's entities

METEMNTIA in the respective jurisdictions 5,923 5,110
WEERELEMSHEER Taxlosses for which no deferred
MIEE 1R income tax assets were recognised 1,067 865

HRBA T ERDEL Recognition of tax losses for which

HEEENHEESE no deferred tax assets were
recognised previously - (715)
BANT A Income not subject to tax (423) (311

LR Expenses not deductible for

tax purposes 479 1,338
A Withholding tax 115 (508)
MEFAX Tax charge 7,161 5,779

(c) BIEEIE (c) Tax losses

166

RZEBE—-NFF+=ZA=+—8"

7N 55 [ 30 4% 3 85 18 497,890,000
7t (= F— )\ 4F : 3,460,000 7T ) fE
IR T FT 15 B B EE 491,932,00008
T(ZE—NF+ZA=+—8:

865,000/ 70) " TR A K B R
BETETE 2 A A R SR FE R B E A A 1
HERIEEE - BREREBE B
THEB R R A FEM RS RS
KRR ERFEUA -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of approximately HK$1,932,000
(31 December 2018: HK$865,000) in respect of losses
amounting to approximately HK$7,890,000 (2018:
HK$3,460,000), as it is uncertain that future taxable profit
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised. In accordance with the PRC tax law, tax losses may
be carried forward to offset against future taxable income
for a period of five years.
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26

27

BREF

(a) BEREXREF
BRERBNZARAEDFE A
EFRRNBRAFAEETER
Rt HEE -

26 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

BE+t-A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—E-N\F

—2-1F
2019 2018

NAERER A AEIRER  Profit for the year attributable to equity

w=mA(FAET) holders of the Company (HK$'000) 26,649 22,222
BEEITEBARME TS Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue 600,000,000 600,000,000

FREARRZFN (BT Basic earnings per share (HK$) 0.0444 0.0370

(b) SHRBBRF
HREE-F-AET A=t
B UL R M AR E R R B
BB (~F—\F ) AER
B RASNEREART -

iz 2

R-ZBE-HAE=A=-1+hB - KAAE
FegEREREE T —\F+=
BA=+—HLEFESREBR0.01E T
AR E -ARRFRNEREBEF X
1 B9 42 %8 56,000,000/ 7T ©

R-B-_ZBF=ZA=+H ARAE=F
EEHAERERAEE-_F-NAFTA
=+ — B FE S E ER.037%E T H)
KU B - % ERBMBEAFRERA
ARBRBEFEAEG L# - R EM B ®
KA RREZEEARS. -

(b) Diluted earnings per share
As there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil), diluted
earnings per share was equal to basic earnings per share.

27 DIVIDEND

On 29 March 2019, the directors of the Company approved
and declared a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2018 of HK$0.01 per ordinary share. A total sum amounted
to HK$6,000,000 was paid out of the retained earnings of the
Company during the year.

On 30 March 2020, the directors of the Company approved
and declared a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019 of HK$0.03 per ordinary share. Such final dividend is to be
approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting
of the Company. These financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.
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28 MEAT 28 SUBSIDIARIES
RZBE—NF+-_A=+—HBHHHER The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019:
CILONNE

BERTR
AR R AR EX 3 R/ ERRA FEERERE I
Issued and

paidup  Effective percentage of
Name of company Type of legal status Principal activities capital equity holding
“B-AE  ZE-N\F

2019 2018

WEARA-REBEZHEE ((RERLBE)EMRYL HEREERERES
Subsidiaries - incorporated in British Virgin Islands ("BV1"),
operated in Hong Kong and directly owned

Higrowth Ventures Limited BREMR REER 1,000% 7T 100% 100%
Higrowth Ventures Limited Limited liability Investment holding Usb1,000 100% 100%
BREBEBRAR BREMR REER 1,001% T 100% 100%
Rich Vast International Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD1,001 100% 100%
ETREBRAR BREF REZR 1,001% T 100% 100%
Mega Dollar Investment Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD1,001 100% 100%
Hero Shine Global Limited BREM RERK E 100% 100%
Hero Shine Global Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100%
BREARERAT BREM REER 1,205% 7T 100% -
Splendid Gains International Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1,225 100% -
Hanson Global International Limited BREM REER 100%7T 100% -
Hanson Global International Limited Limited liability Investment holding UsD100 100% -
Portbase Holdings Limited BREM REER EI 100% -
Portbase Holdings Limited Limited liability Investment holding USD1 100% -

WEBLAR-RPEEMRIREEREEES
Subsidiaries - incorporated and operated in the PRC and indirectly owned

REARRREXERAR WEBELE PR EEREER 40,000,000 7T 100% 100%

Dongguan Speedy Garment Wholly-foreign Apparel Supply Chain HK$40,000,000 100% 100%
Manufacturing Company Limited owned enterprise Servicing Business

BELAX(BM)BRAAF NEBELE R EEREER 10,000,000/ 7T 100% 100%

Koyip Garment (Huizhou) Wholly-foreign Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
Manufactory Ltd. owned enterprise Servicing Business
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28 MIBAT (&) 28 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTR
Gk R AR TERE R/ ERRE igs2: $+3 G APl
Issued and

paidup  Effective percentage of
Name of company Type of legal status Principal activities capital equity holding
“E-NE  ZZT-N\F
2019 2018

WBAR-REBIMRUKEERBERSE
Subsidiaries - incorporated and operated in Hong Kong and indirectly owned

MERREX (FE)BRAR BREE PR EEREER 10,0007 7T 100% 100%

Speedy Garment Manufacturing Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited Servicing Business

BEEE(EX)ERAR BREM PR EREER 1,000,0007% 7T 100% 100%

Jointex Garment Manufactory Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business

BEHRBBRAR BEREM PR EEREER 10,0007 7T 100% 100%

Goalwill Garment Manufactory Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% 100%
Servicing Business

RREE (FB)ARAA AREE &G IESR MRS 25 10,0007 7T 100% -

Pageant Enterprise (Hong Kong) Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% -
Servicing Business

BELEERAF BREM PR EEREER 10,0007 7T 100% -

Well Faith Enterprise Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain HK$10,000 100% -
Servicing Business

WEAR-REBBMARL REBLERMEER
Subsidiaries - incorporated in the United Kingdom, operated in Hong Kong and directly owned

Topline Garment Limited BREM FREH B RS £ TR 100% -
Topline Garment Limited Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain GBP1 100% -
Servicing Business

HWEAR-RRBRIMALREERBERE
Subsidiary - incorporated and operated in Cambodia and indirectly owned

Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited ABE T PR EEREER 5,000,000% 7T 100% -
Agile Sweater (Cambodia) Company Limited - Limited liability Apparel Supply Chain USD5,000,000 100% -
Servicing Business
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29 HEaREBER 29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) R&EMBHES (@) cash generated from operations

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —ZT—N\F
2019 2018
FHxT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
F R F Profit for the year 26,649 22,222
RTINS EELFE: Adjustments for:
— PR (K25) - Income tax expense (note 25) 7,161 5,779
—E (M6 Kk7) - Depreciation (note 6 and 7) 24,799 3,482
— B8 (FEE8) - Amortisation (notes 8) 3,256 265
—HEWE - BWEREE — Net losses/(gains) on disposal
FEE, (ES) of property, plant and equipment
(Kt3E21) (note 21) 635 (80)
— BB A - Finance income (1,157) (2,016)
—RLE KA - Finance costs 10,685 10,703
—HNE BB FEE (FFEE21) - Net foreign exchange losses (note 21) 10 1,068
~-GFERERE - Allowance for/(reversal of
(BErE) (MizE22) allowance for) inventory impairment
(note 22) 1,447 (2,459)
—REEREE (FEE22) - Allowance for doubtful debts (note 22) 7,258 1,331

LIEESE IR L F . Operating profit before working

capital changes: 80,743 40,295
—FE — Inventories 53,706 46,051
— W AR 3R I H At fE W k1B —Trade and other receivables (94,091) 50,009
—JBfFRIE - Prepayments (3,939) (7,751)
—EREZREMENFKIE  ~Tade and other payables 51,747 (45,980)
—&HMaE - Contract liabilities 57 2,665
KEMFRS Cash generated from operations 88,223 85,289
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29 REeEREEHR (&) 29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)
(b) EHEREeRERP HEWE- (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
BB KRBTSRI EIE: from disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-AEF —E—N\F

2019 2018
TEx TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

BREVFAE (M5E6) Net book amount (note 6) 763 245
HEWE  BEREEF Net (losses)/gains on disposal of
(BE), s (KisE21) property, plant and equipment

(note 21) (635) 80
HEWE -HE X Proceeds from disposal of property,
BRSSO plant and equipment 128 325
(c) REeRBLESEYWFHEYER (c) Net cash and cash equivalents reconciliation
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —ZT—N\F
2019 2018
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 169,775 346,179
BE-ER—FANEE Bank borrowings — repayable
within one year (91,545) (87,253)
EBFE-ER—FRNEEZE Lease liabilities - repayable
within one year (9.352) (296)
HEaGE-ER—F%&EEZE Lease liabilities - repayable
after one year (9,315) (770)
BeMBEeEEBYFRE Net cash and cash equivalents 59,563 257,860
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29 REeEREEHR (&) 29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)
c) ReRkBEEEYFEHE (c) Net cash and cash equivalents reconciliation
(%) (Continued)
R+t=—A=+—8

As at 31 December
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
THET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 169,775 346,179
BB )FEF % Gross debt — variable interest rates (110,212) (88,319)
RERBACEEMFR Net cash and cash equivalents 59,563 257,860

&E RETBFBARE
Assets Liabilities from financing activities
Aek MEREE MELIE MERTH
HeSEY NHEEEE HEEEE MNRTEE
Lease Lease Bank

Cash liabilities liabilities  borrowings
and cash  due within due after  due within

equivalents 1 year 1 year 1 year
FHL THL T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-Z-NE—-HA—HZ Netcash and cash equivalents

ReRRESENTFE as at 1 January 2018 342,910 (250) (192) (146,000) 196,468
BeRg Cash flows 7,048 (624) - 58,608 65,032
ERRAE Foreign exchange adjustments 3,779 - - 139 (3,640)
HE Transfer - 578 (578) = =
RZZ-N\% Net cash and cash equivalents

+=ZA=+-A2B£&K asat 31 December 2018

REeSENFE 346,179 (296) (770) (87,253 257,860

R-Z-hE-A-A2 Net cash and cash equivalents

REeRESEEYEE as at 1 January 2019 346,179 (296) (770) (87,253) 257,860
BHBREYAE Adjustment for change in
(Fi3E2.2) accounting policy (note 2.2) - (10,572) (11,083) - (21,655)

R-Z-hE-A-Az2 Restated net cash and
BeRASSEYEFFE cash equivalents as at

1 January 2019 346,179 (10,868) (11,853) (87,253) 236,205
BehmE Cash flows (40,955) 12,955 - 93,125 65,125
WepEr B AR (F7E31) Acquistion of subsidiaries (note 31) (135,275) (5,849) (12,439) (97,430) (250,993)
RERLEFE Additions and disposals - net - 789 8,347 - 9,136
R Foreign exchange adjustments (174) 91 160 13 90
B3z Transfer - (6,470) 6,470 - -

RZZ-hE+=-A=1+—H8 Net cash and cash equivalents
ZRERBSEENEE as at 31 December 2019 169,775 (9,352) (9,315) (91,545) 59,563
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30

31

REHEERE

RETAHEECEHEE AERERKK
ERERBELRENT

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

R+=—A=+-8

As at 31 December
—E—NF —T—N\&
2019 2018
FHT FiHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F R Within 1 year 57 12,161
—EhF 1to 5 years - 12,089
57 24,250

EREHt 31 BUSINESS COMBINATION

R-ZE-NEFOA-B ARAABEBAR
ERBERRFWED RSB N2 FPAE -
PEEETBNETERHBERNLE
RESER WHBSRBBNSERK
BERREEHIBER ZIINREERD
HERQEBERAKEERNEFAS
RAEERFRERREROATERS -
N EAARENREERERAE
RER BORDEPEEZEH KA
R o

BB ER AR A RN B B &
BEER(TBEEEDOARRERENR
1255 Bl A £981.6% M8 2% % EAE
RANE B R RERTT RITHARE
BEEEBKEBTIRS -

On 1 April 2019, the Company acquired 100% interest in
Splendid Gains Group from Splendid Gains Holdings Limited.
Splendid Gains Group is principally engaged in the business of
manufacturing and trading of sweater knitwear products. The
acquisition provided an opportunity for the Group to enhance
its future development through (1) participating in the sales of
garment products apart from woven wear and cut-and-sewn
knitwear products and (2) expanding the customer mix for the
Group's products. In addition, it provided an alternative source of
the Group's existing products which helped diversify the Group's
risk under the trade war between the PRC and the United States
of America.

As Splendid Gains Holdings Limited was at the date of
acquisition owned as to approximately 81.6% by the brother
of Mr. Huang Chih Shen (“Mr. Huang") and 8.2% by Mr. Huang's
sister-in-law while Mr. Huang is the ultimate controlling party and
chief executive officer of the Group, the acquisition constituted a
related party transaction.
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31 £¥E0t (&)

PEREENKBAHNATENEERE
B AFELT:

31 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continuea)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Splendid
Gains Group at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Uk BB B

BRNAFE

Fair value

recognised

onh acquisition

FRT

HK$'000

M- BB REE Property, plant and equipment 57,734
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 18,288
BmEE Intangible assets 12,000
558 Inventories 26,854
JE Ui BR 3R % HL Ath B W R IR Trade and other receivables 29,955
RehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 44,725
JE A< BR 30 R HL At B ST BUIE Trade and other payables (15,389)
AHEE Contract liabilities (861)
BE Borrowings (97,430)
HEAE Lease liabilities (18,288)
ENHAFrE BB E Current income tax liabilities (6,186)
BEFEHAE Deferred tax liabilities (5,437)
Al RIE EFEATE Total identifiable net assets 45,965
W R R Goodwill on acquisition 134,035
BUERE Total purchase consideration 180,000

JE AT B R R EL i U 3 TE A IR B HA Y
N AE L) 529,955,000/ 70 HHERH S
#)HARE o

AEBRBUBEEEERIKRAEAD
2,562,000/ T c ZER S K AE T8 7
AGA2HERFROITERAS -

The fair value of the trade and other receivables as at the date
of acquisition amounted to approximately HK$29,955,000, which
is equal to their gross contractual amounts.

The Group incurred transaction costs of approximately
HK$2,562,000 for the Acquisition. These transaction costs have
been expensed and are included in administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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31 ¥B66t(#) 31 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
EMETRRTBENEE AN RTBEHE The goodwill is attributable to the acquired employee workforce
ERHBRRE - HEEATEBRERT and the expected synergies. The goodwill is not expected to be
#i[E - deductible for tax purpose.

FTExT
HK$'000
ReRE Cash consideration (180,000)
WWEMIR S MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents acquired 44,725
WARBEHFEREMNENE SR Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
REZEEYREFE included in cash flows from investing activities (135,275)
BRBEEUR BREERASER Since the acquisition, Splendid Gains Group contributed
B #9366,179,0008 T s K MEZE = approximately HK$366,179,000 to the Group's revenue and
—hWE+_A=+—BLEFENGEER approximately HK$9,713,000 to the consolidated profit for the
FIEE A 499,713,000 7T ° year ended 31 December 2079.
WMEHRFINET AEEHE-T Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
—NF+ZA=+—HAEFENKE the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
s B #8 5 Bl 49 £1,132,443,00078 7T & year ended 31 December 2019 would have been approximately
23,489,000/ T ° HK$1,132,443,000 and HK$23,489,000, respectively.
BREEEHZ EFERARQRRE Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the vendor has
WMBEENEE_ZE-NE=A=+— undertaken to the Company that the audited net profit after tax
BIEFEMSEZBRMERFNFEDT of the Splendid Gains Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
13 > 1430,000,000/ 7T ([ = — L F 8 shall not be less than HK$30,000,000 (the “2019 Performance
BHER]) RUOBBEERREE-ZT Guarantee”). As shown in the audited consolidated financial
—NF=ZRA=1T—HLEFENKEZEL statements of the Splendid Gains Group for the year ended
EUBRERABET BREERBER 31 March 2019, the net profit after tax of the Splendid Gains
F % & #930,327,0008 0 HE BB Group was approximately HK$30,327,000, which had exceeded
30,000,000 7 Bt —E— W FEF#H HK$30,000,000, and therefore the 2019 Performance Guarantee
BREEERK - has been fulfilled.

32 EXBEFRS 32 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AEEMNEBREREZERAG AKX The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Group is
TRBERAR (REBE LS MK Sky Halo Holdings Limited (incorporated in the BVI), which owns
S BFE B AR R A154.54%0% 1 0 AN & 54.54% of the Company’s shares. The ultimate controlling party
BB AR AE I RITHAER R ETE - and chief executive officer of the Group is Mr. Huang.
MER—F B N EEKEEIEHEAm Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
RIS AT A S E R B i a8 & or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
REREEHEBEMERZE N AZHH significant influence over the other parties in making financial
RARBHE- and operating decisions.
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32 EXRAERRS (&) 32 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
ARBEERB UTRARALTAER The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
HE_Z-NF+ZA=1+T—HLFE companies and individuals were related parties that had
HAEBEETEARINEEBNBE significant transactions or balances with the Group during the
pak year ended 31 December 2019:

NG PN 5

RASENERER

Company/individual

BLREREZEERAR ([BEBE])

(Shing Fun International Industrial Limited
(“Shing Fun International™))

BEAERK (BN AERRR ([BEEIM])

Shingfeng Weaving Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited
(“Shingfeng Huizhou")

SERX (BN ERAR ([£EFIM])

(Jinfeng Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited)
("Jinfeng Huizhou")

EAERKR (BMN)ARAR ([MEHEM])

(Yicheng Weaving Garment (Huizhou) Company Limited)
("Yicheng Huizhou")

REMKBERBERAA ([REHME])

(Dongguan zhirong Garment Company Limited)
("Dongguan zhirong”)

REMBEREAERAG ([REMBM])

(Dongguan Hongyue Garment Company Limited)
(“Dongguan Hongyue")

BEEENRERAR ([BEEE])

(Shing Fun Knitting & Garment Limited)
(“Shing Fun Knitting")

BEERBRARDNZERMHESR A

Majority owners of Splendid Gains Holdings Limited

MFRIRIKIEARBR A F] o SPEEDY GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Relationship with the Group

mEEERERES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

REAERELRZES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

mEEE RERES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

REEERELREZES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

mELEEREARES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

BELEERELRES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

mEEE RERES
Controlled by Mr. Huang and his brother

BEREMNARRELEN LY
Mr. Huang's brother and Mr. Huang's sister-in-law
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32 ERBERIRS (&) 32 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(@) BEIXS
BAMBHREHEMEMREEIN
RBE-_Z-NAFt+-_A=1+—
BIEFE AEECEEESTET
UTRZ - ARREERE BE

(@) Related party transactions
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
during the year ended 31 December 2019, the following
transactions were carried out between the Group and
related parties. In the opinion of the directors of the
FRGTIRABERBEPET Company, the related party transactions were carried out
BRGEF TR AR R E R R E T in the normal course of business and at terms negotiated
7 o between the Group and the respective related parties.

BEt+t-A=+—-BLEE
Year ended 31 December
—F-hE

—E—)\F
2019 2018
F#ExT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

() FEFEXENHELES Rental expenses payable or paid to

HEEANLE Dongguan zhirong - 9,401

fis 8 B PR Shing Fun International - 1,588

o L= Jinfeng Huizhou - 731

BRI M Yicheng Huizhou = 244

P 22 s Shing Fun Knitting 133 =

133 11,964

() U TEFETUE  Finance costs incurred for lease with
LR LA

HEEANLE Dongguan zhirong 331 =

s & B Shing Fun International 137 -

o L= Jinfeng Huizhou 49 -

REET AR Dongguan Hongyue 39 =

B BN Yicheng Huizhou 16 =

572 -
iy, RZFE—HALFW@A—B 'K (i) On 1 April 2019, the Group acquired 89.8% equity
SERELENARREL interests of Splendid Gains Group from Mr. Huang's

ERRRBYBIERAR
N AVH89 8% HE (P FE31) °

brother and Mr. Huang's sister-in-law (note 31).
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32 EXRAERRS (&) 32 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(a) BAEFRS (£&) (a) Related party transactions (Continued)
BR+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—®-hE —EN\F
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(iv) HAbERIA Other payables
LN Jinfeng Huizhou 117 -
s 22 =M Shingfeng Huizhou 27 -
144 -
vy HEERE Lease liabilities
REEM AR Dongguan Hongyue 2,768 =
B 2 B B Shing Fun International 1,988 =
SEHNM Jinfeng Huizhou 672 -
B M Yicheng Huizhou 242 -
5,670 -
riENEER SR AR B BIK The above balances due to related parties are interest free,
BRAREREE- unsecured and repayable on demand.
(b) SREEEFHMH (b) Senior management’s compensations

BE+t-A=1+—HILEFE
Year ended 31 December

—B-NE  —FN\F
2019 2018
FHT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

ITERHFEURK Wages and salaries and other
HiEWREF benefits in kind 12,346 9,771
HERERKA Social security costs 68 54

12,414 9,825
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33 RATFMBERRRRFHEEE 33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

BR+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-AF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
B 5 FET T T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
REBEE Non-current asset
RBRAIZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 226,876 46,860
REEE Current assets
TERT IR Prepayments 145 10,166
FEHAR B Dividend receivable 40,000 20,000
E g SRR Other receivables 27,379 103,633
ReRBASEED Cash and cash equivalents 5 1
67,529 133,800
BEBTE Total assets 294,405 180,660
= EQUITY
EATEZEFEA Equity attributable to equity
ERRER holders of the Company
[N Share capital 60,000 60,000
1% 5 % B Share premium 53,441 53,441
H S Other reserve (b) 46,836 46,836
RE & Retained earnings (@) 19,267 10,251
179,544 170,528
&aE LIABILITY
REEE current liability
H At &5 5RIE Other payables 114,861 10,132
BRAERERE Total equity and liability 294,405 180,660
KRR BRARER-_E_ZEF =1 The statement of financial position of the Company was
—tHREESHETHUATREEE - approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020 and was
signed on its behalf.
BEER EET®
Huang Chih Shen Huang Li Hun, Serlina
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33 RXATFMBERRRRFEEE 33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(#&) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(@ EAAT(RFER) REER (@) Movement of (accumulated losses)/retained
Fi 5 B earnings of the Company
T
HK$'000
R-—ZE-N\F—HA—H As at 1 January 2018 (7,116)
F A5 T Profit for the year 17,367
R=Z-N\E+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2018 10,251
R-ZE-NE—H—H As at 1 January 2019 10,251
& 9% Fl Profit for the year 15,016
% B Dividend (6,000)
R-ZEB-NAE+=A=+—8 As at 31 December 2019 19,267
(b) Httf#E (b) Other reserve
RArEfEEERE-S——F Other reserve of the Company represented the difference
TR ERTBEIENE A BRIRE between the investment cost in the subsidiaries acquired
PR AN EAZR R RIE R AT B ATAR AR pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2012 over the
MEBECEAHESE- nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued

in exchange thereof.
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3 EERFETHAEME 34 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS
EEEEK
MERAL BAGFEER
Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary benefit
Salary bonus scheme Total
TET TET T FHEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-Z-hE+=A Year ended 31 December 2019
=t-ALEE
HITEF Executive directors
BEEE Mr. Huang 4,171 1,500 18 5,689
Bt & Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick 1,586 1,500 18 3,104
BUHHTEE Independent non-executive
airectors
HESEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 180 - - 180
gzt Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 180 - - 180
ROELE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 180 - - 180
CERIAL N Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 180 - - 180
6,477 3,000 36 9,513
BZ-Z-\F+=R Year ended 31 December 2018
=t+-ALEE
HITEF Executive directors
BERE Mr. Huang 3,448 1,500 18 4,966
BT E Mr. Chan Hung Kwong, Patrick 1,589 1,500 18 3,107
BUHRTEE Independent non-executive directors
HEESEE Mr. Wong Ting Kon 180 - - 180
20k R Ms. Pang Yuen Shan, Christina 180 = = 180
ROELE Mr. Chang Cheuk Cheung, Terence 180 = = 180
BRI EL Dr. Chan Chung Bun, Bunny 180 = = 180
5,757 3,000 36 8,793
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34 EERFEMTHRAEME (4

BEERARAITRAR BBEER
BE_T-NFt-_A=1—BLEE
HELREREZEMHE (ZFT—N\F:
&) -

BHE_ZT-NF+-A=t+—HLFE"
AEEHERAEESINERAMS R
08 51 18 % AN SRAN AR £2 (B B 1) 22 B =
ERBERME (2 N\F: &) -

(a) EFRAFZE
VTEREEERARTXEMER
AlH) =R T IR A AL AR 7 T E A+
HEM 2 BRARFE (ZF— N\
®) -

(b) ESERULEBRBHMRIFE
FR-UEAE S EAMRER
M (FRESRREAMEERERL
REOFEE(ZF—-\F8E) -

() MEHEESRBEMAF=IX
HHRE
MENE - BATRENRAES
RIS (R RERTEETHREUEA
SORB) MM REMHERE=
FOREB(ZZE-NF E)-

d E2 - ZSESZFNEAER
REEEAFEENERZENK
BOERURERZEALH
HitZ B HEHR
TR TEEF REFEHNL
ABERESEEHENERZE
FBUEFARERZSALH
HRXHHEBERN (ZFT—N\F:
&) o

34 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Huang is the chief executive officer of the Company. No
director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2018: Nil).

(a) Directors’ retirement benefits
No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking (2018: Nil).

(b) Directors’ termination payments or benefits
No payment was made or benefit provided to directors as
compensation for the early termination of the appointment
or in respect of termination of the services of directors
during the year (2018: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services
No consideration was provided to or receivable by any
third party for making available the services of a person as
a director of a company, or in any other capacity while as a
director (2018: Nil).

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors
There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year
(2018: Nil).
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3 EERTETHAEME (&) 34 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

() EXZEXRS RYASHHH
EAER
B mEREMEPAREEIN
RERKX T - NFFREMME
B NEBMERT TP RAE
BEBMARRZESTHERAME
EETFHRAEARSECEER S
ZHREHN (ZE-NF &) -

35 MiR=R

RZZE-ZTF 20198 MK 5 KR #H
(MOVBRREHREE] R HEDE
KEBN2BREE IR R E R -
BREREEEENFRE NEoi
BREKEEHRFRERETIAH HA
BERPHLRBEGLHERE TIZEN
RbIRER HEOERETRE 125
ITREMRRENFERRENR  SBHE
SERES -

AEERE2019BMR RS HIERENTS
BloMEE AEEEERGAEEER
AR ELERH - BREAEES
TFHEMCHERELE BAEEF
AR AZCOR-_E-_EF_A++BE
BigIREESE -BETHEEMBNEET
HIRCHTEERE AR EERIOEART
HEARMNERNEETR - AEE —&H
BmEEEEGHE SREERRIATR-

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year 2019
(2018: Nil).

35 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“the
COVID-19 Outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across the PRC, including extension of the Chinese New Year
holiday nationwide, postponement of work resumption after
the Chinese New Year holiday in some regions, certain level of
restrictions and controls over the travelling of people and traffic
arrangements, quarantine of certain residents, heightening of
hygiene and epidemic prevention requirements in factories and
offices and encouraged social distancing, etc.

In order to minimise the impact of the COVID-19 Outbreak and
changes in the market, the Group has actively coordinated
relevant resources and adjusted production and operation
arrangements in a timely manner. Despite some of the Group’s
suppliers have postponed the resumption of their production,
the Group’s PRC office resumed operation after the Chinese
New Year on 17 February 2020. The supply of certain production
materials have also experiencing delayed for a short period
which then delayed the completion of certain sales contracts
in recent months. The Group has been proactively coordinating
with suppliers to seek the best solution.
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35

184

HEE ()

P09 RS RIBELRE NEBFBLEL
FREMERERAESREAESSER
. BHEWRREHEEEBER -
HEWMBHERBE 2098 RESFH
BEUNAEERFPNTBERIEERE
REFREBEEBYENITRTE A£EE
FEEBU ST E AEEBEES
PRI20198 RFSHIBENEE B
HY 27— S W IREER I

REEZMBHRERE AEEEAHR
EEE(WaA9) MABESEEEMDN
AWESE (BREREDE) A&
TR ERE - BT RAEN AEE
BRERZZE-—NF+A=T—BKK
HRARSELEBENAKRBRESRENE
BE-HEWHBERRAE AEEDEF
H2019B R R EREHBER S EEEN
KERMTE BRIEEGHAEHAEER

35 SUBSEQUENT EVENT (Continued)

Following the COVID-19 Outbreak, the Group is experiencing
longer trade receivable turnover time and some have become
overdue, which led to an increase in the expected credit loss
ratios on trade receivable. Up to the date of this set of financial
statements, the impact of the COVID-19 Outbreak on the
Group's customers’ financial positions and the macro-economic
conditions as a whole are still uncertain, the Group is unable to
quantify the related financial effects. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 Outbreak, perform
further assessment of its impact and take relevant measures.

In preparing this set of financial statements, the Group tested
goodwill for impairment (note 9) and the recoverable amount of
the relevant CGU which exceeds its carrying amount, thus no
provision for impairment is made. In performing this assessment,
the Group estimated the present value of future cash flows of
the CGU based on the conditions as at 31 December 2019. Up to
the date of this set of financial statements, the Group is still in
the process of assessing the impacts of the COVID-19 Outbreak
on the performance of the relevant CGU and is currently unable
to estimate the quantitative impact to the Group.
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